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Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
is one of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group principally engages in the sourcing, designing,
wholesaling and retailing of a variety of gold jewellery, gold
ornaments, gem-set jewellery, gemstones and other accessory
items, with a total of over 410 retail outlets in Hong Kong, the
PRC, Macau, Canada and the United States.

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange in May 1997.
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22 Victoria Street
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Both the English and Chinese versions of this Annual Report can be
accessed through the Internet at: http://www.lukfook.com.hk
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Corporate Events
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The Group’s Deputy General Manager, Mr. Tse Moon Chuen (Right)
“PRC Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong Brands 2007” &
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" on behalf of the Group

“The Most Favourable Brands of the Nation 2007
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Honours & Awards

B B BEH

Apr 4H 2007

‘“PRC Consumers’ Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands
2007” & “The Most Favorable Brands of the Nation 2007
Organizer: JUST Events Limited and the China Enterprise
Reputation and Credibility Association (Overseas) Limited
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Sep 9H 2007

“The 4th Retail Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards” and was
ranked one of the top 10 retailers in Hong Kong
Organizer: Retail Asia, Euromonitor International and KPMG

[ I R A w5005 | WA FE R KEERERZ—
IS ¢ Retail Asia * Euromonitor International 5 5 55 & &
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Feb 2H 2008

The “Best of Show”” Award and “Craftsmanship &
Technology Award” in “The 9th Hong Kong Jewellery
Design Competition”

Organizer: Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Hong
Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association, Hong Kong
Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association, Hong Kong
Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association and Diamond Federation
of Hong Kong, China
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May 5H 2007

“The Best Brand Enterprise Award 2007 (Greater China)”’
Organizer: Hong Kong Productivity Council
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Dec 124 2007

“Asia’s Top 1000 Brands™
Organizer: “Media”, a leading credible magazine

BRI e 10007 |
LIRS - FAERAERE (Media)
Five awards in ‘‘The 8th Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design

Competition”
Organizer: Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association
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Four awards in ‘“The Tahitian Pearl Trophy Asia Sth Edition”
Organizer: Perles De Tahiti GIE
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Mar 3 H 2008

Winner of the Open Group in the ‘“Chuk Kam Jewellery
Design Competition 2008 (Theme: Pride)
Organizer: Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths’ Association
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AWARDED JEWELLERY PIECES AT A GLANCE
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Chuk Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2008

The 9th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition
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The 8th Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition
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The 8th Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition
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Chief Executive’s Statement

A7 B AL

WONG Wai Sheung ##%
Chief Executive FTIBAE R

It is my pleasure to present to you the 2008 annual report of Luk Fook AR NJRIRBE B /St A M (B B IRA A (T4
Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries A J) M LR 2 | (AR ASSE 1 1) # 2200843

(collectively known as the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31st March A31H 1L BAEAEE Z 2008 F-#
2008.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WHBs Bl

Results e 3

For the year ended 31st March 2008, the Group’s total turnover was BAE20084F3 H31 HILAEE » ALLE 2 BB EMH
approximately HK$3,367,182,000, which represented a 18.3% growth as #1%53,367,182,000 % 7T > 1K 247 2,845,147,000%
compared to HK$2,845,147,000 in the previous year. Profit attributable JCHER18.3% o MR SR ME AL 5 A B 254 198,059,000
to shareholders rose 58.5% to approximately HK$313,989,000 from T b F158.5% % £9313,989,000 T o 4845 15 Al

HK$198,059,000 of last year. Operating profit margin improved from 8.0% FEH8.0%MME11.1% o HIRIEALF| 1563.8H
to 11.1%. Basic earnings per share were HK63.8 cents (2007: HK 40.3 cents). il (20074F : 40.37#A1lI) -

Dividend JBe &

The Directors proposed a final dividend of HK15.5 cents per share (2007: HHEE M 200843 31 B 1L 4F B IR B AWK
HK 11.0 cents per share) for the year ended 31st March 2008. In addition to BB 15584l (20074F : BB 11.0M#6Al) - [
the interim dividend of HK 10.0 cents per share already paid, the dividend for T JREEH TP #3IE 1550 10.08 1l - 24FBE A 3L

the full year amounted to HK25.5 cents per share (2007: HK 18.0 cents per Fy 25 5HAL (20074F - B AR18.0MEAl) - IR
share). The proposed dividend will be paid on 12th September 2008 following S A IR HIEF A & At A% > #5772 20084F9 H
the approval at the Annual General Meeting. 120 XAt »
Overview B ml
The overall performance in the financial year 2007/08 was encouraging. 2007/08 B BUAF B 11 % 8 SR B4 NSk - A4
Our total turnover maintained a satisfactory double-digit growth. Thanks to 1 AR SRR O B S R SN - B

the robust local financial market and the fast growing PRC economy, Hong W RTTS R RES) - I L b B AR U R
Kong and PRC consumers generally grew in wealth and enjoyed rising living W8I T > H b my il £ 8 & — BRI AR
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standard. Despite the volatile Asian stock markets in early 2008, the economic
conditions in Hong Kong remain steady and the PRC economy continues to
show strong growth.

The Group’s turnover of the retail and wholesale business accounted for 74%
and 26% of the total turnover respectively. Notwithstanding the surging gold
prices during the year, gold products remained popular among customers,
especially PRC tourists who buy gold as investments. For the year ended 31st
March 2008, gold products contributed approximately 47% of the Group’s
turnover excluding trade-in transaction and the remaining 53% was mainly
taken up by gemstone jewellery.

Meanwhile, the appreciation of Renminbi has encouraged the PRC consumers
to buy more luxury products like jewellery. Indeed, from the figures of the
Hong Kong Tourism Board, the spending per capita of the PRC tourists in
Hong Kong in 2007 increased by 10.4% to HK$5,193 from that of last year,
which was the highest growth rate among overnight visitors.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Hong Kong Market

The Hong Kong market remained the key market of the Group. The Hong
Kong operation accounted for approximately 87% of the total turnover. As
at 31st March 2008, the Group operated 28 shops under the brand name of
“Luk Fook” in Hong Kong. During the year under review, the Group opened
four new shops in Mong Kok, Causeway Bay and Central. Meanwhile, the
Group’s shop renovation project entered the final stage. Only the 2 shops in
Shatin and the Hong Kong International Airport are yet to be renovated. To
enhance profitability, the remaining Ice g. shop was closed down during the
year.

N HaGE B (B ) A R F]

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited
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Chief Executive’s Statement (continued)
AT BRI (B

We estimated that over 50% of Hong Kong retail sales were contributed by
the PRC tourists. The continuous appreciation of Renminbi has stimulated
the purchasing appetite of the PRC consumers to shop in Hong Kong. Thus,
the huge spending of the PRC tourists has been the key support of our Hong
Kong sales, besides local consumers. For the year ended 31st March 2008,
turnover from our retail business in Hong Kong grew by 35% from last year.

PRC Market

The Group believes the licensing operation in the PRC is an effective way
to expand in the PRC and enhance the Group’s brand awareness. As at 31st
March 2008, the Group had over 340 licensee shops in the PRC.

‘While continuing to expand our licensee shop network, the Group also sets
up self-operated shops to increase brand equity and shorten the learning curve
of licensee shops. During the year, the Group increased the presence of self-
operated shops in the PRC. Seven new shops were established in six cities
including Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Ningbo, Lanzhou and Jinan, bringing
the number of self-operated shops in the PRC to a total of 11.

Macau Market

‘With the establishment of more casinos and new attractions, Macau has
gradually transformed into a large-scale entertainment city where tourist
arrivals continue to increase year on year. More than that, it has out-competed
Las Vegas during year 2007 and is by now the world’s largest casino market.
In December 2007, the Group opened the third self-operated shop in the
Grand Canal Shoppes at the Venetian Resort. We considered the Venetian
Resort an ideal location to cater to the demand of the upper class customers.
Our other two shops in Macau also benefited from the growing tourist arrivals
and rising tourist consumptions.

Overseas Market

The Group continued to explore potential overseas markets to realize its
globalization strategy. While we extended our geographical reach to more
PRC cities during the year, our global retail network has also been broadened
to new overseas markets. Apart from the retail outlets in Canada and the US,
the Group opened another new shop under the brand name of “Luk Fook™ in
New York in December 2007. The Group is exploring further possibility to
open another new shop in Las Vegas of the US.
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OUTLOOK

Amid the uncertain global economic environment and the risk of slowdown
in the U.S. economy, the retail industry in the coming year might not be as
booming as that of last year on the whole. Nevertheless, with the foundation
of Hong Kong economy, supplemented by strong domestic consumption and
growth in tourist arrivals, we remain optimistic at the domestic retail market.

We are keen on developing the overseas market, as mapped out in our brand’s
globalization strategy. During the year, we made trips to different overseas
markets such as Las Vegas, Dubai and the Southeast Asian region to explore
the possibility of tapping into other new cities. We will seriously consider
opening new shops when suitable opportunities arise.

Looking ahead, the upcoming Beijing Olympics will attract a huge number
of tourists from all over the world. We will proceed with our rapid business
expansion in the PRC under the licensing mode while further accelerating
the speed of opening self-operated shops. We will actively formulate timely
and effective strategies to strengthen our brand whilst facilitating the Group’s
business.

As our Hong Kong operation remains steady, we believe the PRC operation
will become our key growth driver in the future. Riding on our strong brand
effect in the PRC, we are confident that our PRC operation will continue to
drive solid growth with the Group’s endeavor to further widen Luk Fook’s
network. We will strive to establish our presence to many other PRC and
overseas new markets whilst nurturing our brand and other areas for further
growth.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, I would like to thank our staff, shareholders and
business partners for their relentless efforts and dedications to the Group.
Also, I would like to express my gratitude to our customers for their
unswerving support to Luk Fook.

By order of the Board,
Wong Wai Sheung
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 23rd July 2008
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ks B 23 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

Products

The Group diversifies its product portfolio by launching a series of new
products featuring celebrations and festivals in order to reach and secure
various customer segments. The followings were the new products launched
during the year:

¢ Pure gold ornaments “Lucky Golden Mouse” in celebration and memory
of the Year of Mouse

*  Mini gold accessories of the twelve auspicious animals of the Chinese
Zodiac

* A variety of 18K gold products under “K Gold” Series

*  “Once a Decade” Collection & “The HKSAR 10th Anniversary” Stamp
Set to celebrate the 10th Anniversary of Hong Kong’s re-unification with
the PRC

* Elegant and stylish “Sol Diamond” Collection

*  “Floral Inspiration” Collection which features 18K platinum and diamond
* Chinese wedding character “Xifu” Collection for wedding

e “Perfect Lover” Collection for romantic Valentine’s Day

* Trendy “Unique Happiness” Collection by Forevermark which caters to
contemporary women in cosmopolitan

*  “Touching” Series for Mother’s Day

Sales Network

As at 31st March 2008, the Group had 45 wholly owned retail outlets, of
which 44 were under the brand name of “Luk Fook™ in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Macau, the United States and Canada, and one was under the brand name

of “Luvina Jewelers” in San Jose, California of the United States. Four new
shops were opened in Hong Kong during the year, bringing the number of
shops in Hong Kong to a total of 28. Nine of them are located along Nathan
Road, a popular shopping district of the PRC tourists, so as to stimulate the
spending of the PRC customers.

During the year, the Group operated a total of 11 self-operated shops in
Guangzhou, Beijing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Ningbo, Jinan and Lanzhou in

the PRC. Five of them are located in Beijing to take the advantages of the
domestic retail market brought about by the Beijing Olympics. Moreover,
most self-operated shops were opened in large-scale department stores to
accommodate the consumption behaviors of the PRC customers. The Group’s
licensee shops in the PRC were also increased to over 340 as at 31st March
2008, spreading across as many as 29 provinces and 127 cities.
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Marketing and Promotion

In line with the corporate motto of “Brand of Hong Kong Sparkling the
World”, the Group has dedicated to developing marketing and publicity
campaigns that will enhance its brand awareness in global jewellery market
and facilitate the extension of its global retail network. Meanwhile, the Group
also adopted both long-term and creative marketing strategies in its key
markets to publicize its revamped brand image to more customer segments
and to boost sales.

During the year, the Group continued to actively design and execute various
initiatives including TV, print, outdoor and Internet advertising, direct
marketing, public relations, and events such as jewellery sponsorships and
exhibitions. Below were some highlights:

*  Sponsored the diamond crown and jewellery pieces for the winners of
“Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for the 10th consecutive year

* Being the exclusive sponsor for the winners’ jewellery pieces in “Miss
Asia Pageant 2007”

*  Sponsored the jewellery pieces for the winners of “City Beauties Pageant
2007 in Guangzhou, the PRC

*  Sponsored the “Miss Chinese Pageant” in Vancouver and Toronto,
Canada, for several years

* Participated in numerous renowned jewellery exhibitions in Hong Kong,
Macau, and Hangzhou, the PRC, such as the “Hong Kong Jewellery and
Watch Fair”, “Style Hong Kong, Hangzhou”, and “Macau International
Jewelry & Watch Fair”, which was first introduced in The Venetian
Macao-Resort-Hotel

* Extensive TV advertisement placed on major television channels in
both China and Hong Kong. Actively involved in the sponsorship of TV
programmes and hot drama series by means of product placement

e The enormous success of partnership with Forevermark and World Gold
Council, which made great progress in striking the delicate balance
between Luk Fook and fine jewellery, providing a never-ending source of
gift idea and tempting romance

* Sponsored Forevermark’s “All About Love Miriam Yeung Concert”
* Invited celebrities to attend a series of ribbon-cutting events in celebration
of the grand opening of licensee shops in various provinces in the PRC

* Notable success in launching the “Sol Diamond” Collection, which was
well-received by ladies in the market
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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*  We introduced a wide range of new designs and collections for major
festivals including Mother’s Day, Valentine’s Day, Christmas, National
Day and Lunar New Year, creating excitement and broadening the appeal
of our merchandise assortment

During the year, the Group’s “Touching Series” of Mother’s Day Campaign
was awarded the “Poster Campaign of the Year — Silver” in “The Best of
the Best Awards 2007” for MTR Advertising, and “The Kam Fan Awards”
organized by the Association of Accredited Advertising Agencies of Hong
Kong. All the awards demonstrated the Group’s endeavor in the pursuit of
marketing excellence.

Brand Management

The Group’s well-developed brand management system, which aims to
convey a consistent brand image and enhance its superior brand equity in the
markets, continued to reinforce its trusted brand image and bolster purchasing
confidence among customers.

During the year, the Group obtained a number of awards in recognition

of its outstanding achievements in brand building and management. They
included: the “PRC Consumers’ Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands” and
“The Most Favorable Brands of the Nation” in the “PRC Consumers’ Most
Favorable Hong Kong Brands” Competition, which was jointly organized by
JUST Events Limited and the China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility
Association (Overseas) Limited, as well as “The Best Brand Enterprises
Award” conferred by the Hong Kong Productivity Council.

Gaining international recognitions also helped strengthening the Group’s
position in the global jewellery industry. The Group was ranked one of the top
10 retailers in Hong Kong and obtained “The 4th Retail Asia Pacific Top 500
Awards” among 14 economies by “Retail Asia”, a regional retail information
provider based in Singapore. The Group was also awarded in the fourth year
of “Asia’s Top 1000 Brands” by a credible magazine “Media”. Amid brands
from nine markets in the Asia Pacific region, the Group’s ranking has been
promoted from 827 to 610.
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Production

The Group produces a portion of gold ornaments and gem-set jewellery in the
PRC as well as Hong Kong. Apart from the processing house in Hong Kong,
the Group invested approximately HK$100,000,000 to establish a large-scale
jewellery processing plant in Panyu, Guangdong, the PRC, with a total floor
area of over 350,000 square feet, in order to attain cost effectiveness and
production efficiency. The balance of the Group’s products are sourced from
Hong Kong and overseas regions. In early 2008, the factory was accredited
the ISO 9001:2000 Quality Management System, which is a professional
qualification for the quality assurance system of its products.

Portal Operation

The Group’s jewellery portal “www.jewellworld.com” or “www.jw28.com”
is an electronic gateway for the global jewellery industry. It not only serves
as a business-to-business trading platform among jewellery manufacturers,
wholesalers and retailers worldwide, but also an additional promotion and
distribution channel for the Group.

Design

In view of the flourishing market of young customers who have high spending
habit, the Group has put an emphasis on fashionable jewellery design like
diamond to explore the market. With the Group’s outstanding and award-
winning design teams, who are experienced in combining the elements of
traditional and modern jewellery, along with exquisite craftsmanship, the
Group’s products were well received by the market all these years.

The Group was also keen on participating in various local and international
jewellery design competitions during the year. A number of awards were
gained in these competitions, which included: “The 9th Hong Kong Jewellery
Design Competition”, “The Tahitian Pear]l Trophy Asia 5th Edition”, “Chuk
Kam Jewellery Design Competition 2008”, and “The 8th Buyers’ Favorite
Jewelry Design Competition”.

Quality Assurance

The Group is committed to maintaining the highest levels of product quality.
To ensure the best quality of products, the Group set up its wholly owned
subsidiary gems laboratory “China Gems Laboratory Limited” in 1996.

Its scope of services includes authentication, grading of diamonds, and
authentication of jades and colored gemstones and quality assessment of
jewellery. The Laboratory is operated by dozens of certified gemologists

who specialize in the authentication of gemstones and jade. Every year,

the laboratory tests for over 100,000 pieces of jewellery and gemstones

on average. With the ISO 17025 qualification accredited by the Hong

Kong Accreditation Service, the Laboratory has also successfully met the
principles of ISO 9001:2000 Quality Management Systems — Requirements,
demonstrating the professional quality assurance system of the Group. China
Gems Laboratory is the sole subsidiary laboratory of local jewellery retailer
obtaining this qualification. The Group is now actively considering the setting
up of China Gems Laboratory in Macau and other overseas regions in order to
further strengthen its international position in jewellery authentication.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Environmental Protection BREi

In response to the growing corporate awareness in environmental protection, MEARZE H iR mBRIR R R B AR E B
the Group has already started adopting eco-friendly operational practices at GETE P B R R PR AT 6 BR B R i i AR

the manufacturing plant in the PRC, including air purification, expansion of ALHE 22 IR ~ ISR ARAL S5 KR o ASE Bl IR
green gardens and sewage treatment. Other initiatives were also designed by MR T HAb I LA AR (365 - AR FIH HIIE
the Group to foster green businesses. The Group is now cooperating with the BLF s AR SRR A AR FE— R R AT
Hong Kong Productivity Council to carry out a power saving campaign in a K REIRRTE » BTERRBUREZ D S T & o
retail outlet with an aim to significantly reduce the power consumption of the

shop.
FINANCIAL REVIEW S5 ol B
Liquidity and Financial Resources L B 4 B W e

The Group’s core business is gold and jewellery retailing. As at 31st March ARG B AR E TS B R R R o #Z2008
2008, the Group’s cash on hand reached approximately HK$185 million (2007: ~ 4F3H31 H » A4 B ¥ F 53 4 4 % 185,000,000

HKS$175 million). The Group’s bank borrowings-to-equity ratio at the year- W T (20074F 175,000,000 76 ) o < £E [ 14 4F
end, being the proportion of total bank borrowings of approximately HK$273 %% H (¥ 8147 fif Sk BEAS EL % 525.2% (20074F -

million (2007: Nil) against total shareholders’ equity of approximately M) > 1T e SRAT 05 R AR HE 49 273,000,000 #5 7T
HK$1,082 million (2007: HK$850 million), was 25.2% (2007: Nil). (20074F + 1) A3 S HE 2 48 7549 1,082,000,000

#5IT (20074F © 850,000,000%% 70) 2 LLAlFTH. ©

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly denominated in AR 2 WS B FE LIS TEIE

Hong Kong dollars.

Capital Expenditure A B S

During the year under review, the Group incurred capital expenditures of REEEERN > AEBZERE LR
approximately HK$52 million (2007: HK$28 million), including the costs of 52,000,000% 7T (20074F : 28,000,000 7C) - fIFE
properties, leasehold improvement, furniture, fixture and equipment. W2k - HEYERE - &IF - B RFRMA -
Capital Commitments BATRYE

As at 31st March 2008, the Group had total capital commitments in respect of 7~ £ [# 2 2008 4F3 A 31 H 2 & A R s 4058 40
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$4 million 4,000,000%5 7T (20074F © 7,000,000%7T) > (045 i

(2007: HK$7 million). HWE B BB A o

Contingent Liabilities R

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31st March AHE 2200843 H 31 H 5% 20074F3 H31 H i #81T:
2008 and 31st March 2007. (DE PN %=

Employment, Training, Development and Recruitment WS~ B~ BRI EOR
Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March 2008, the total number of employees of the Group was BAE20084F3H31H - ALEME THBEL S
approximately 2,377 (2007: 2,124). Remuneration policies are reviewed and 2,377 N (20074F : 2,124 N) - B8 E WM K
approved by management on a regular basis. Remuneration packages are FMHFNBOR - FrAL G 5885 1 i A& K

structured to take into account the comparable level of the market. Bonus and &8 E o 1k 4L S HoAth 26 3 48 B 1) BLAS 5 [ At
other merit payments are linked to the success of the Group and performance i Bl & T A Z B84 o BLEK B 75 LI 4 38 B 4R
of individual employee. The policy is to encourage employees to optimize FETZ THERH -

business performance by providing them with financial incentives.
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Corporate Governance Report

AEEFIRWA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31st March 2008, the Company had properly applied
the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) included in the Rules governing the listing
of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as follows:

A.  Directors

A.1  The Company is supervised by a Board of Directors who assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and strategising the Company’s affairs. They make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

A2 Anindependent non-executive director acts as the Board Chairman
while an executive director acts as the Chief Executive. There is a
clear division of responsibilities for the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

A.3  The Board comprises 4 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors. They include persons
with a wealth of practical experiences in the jewellery industry,
accountancy profession, legal profession, general trading and
the securities industry. It has a balance of skills and experiences
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business. The
directors’ respective roles and biographies are set out on pages 38 to
40.

A4 All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

A.5  Every director is continuously-reminded of the requirement to keep
abreast of his responsibility as a director of the Company, with
reference to the Listing Rules and the Company Laws inclusive, and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every independent non-executive director also confirms annually his
independence status to the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

A.6  Directors are provided with appropriate information to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES SRR BB @

(Continued)

B.  Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management B. KR RAT P E R

B.1  Information relating to the Company’s directors’ remuneration policy ~ B.1 BHLAN F) N EOR A B 2 Bk R
and other remuneration related matters are disclosed in the Company’s il 35 P AF B S5 B AR AN B 22 AR SRR
annual report. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for o HMMZEETABHFIITESE RS
setting policy on the remuneration of executive directors and senior BB P BB > DL AT e
management and for fixing the remuneration packages. The level of B oo KT R LARS| K EEESE - &
remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain the directors needed to RNFZEWERIE RS T - MEEHR
run the Company successfully. No director is involved in deciding his SHREFT AR B 2 3 -
own remuneration.

C.  Accountability and Audit C. iK%

C.1  The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements Cl1  HEHAERNAMBUAMZ H#HRE
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the DIELE AT S B 2 R R A B2 1) B I
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the financial HATA] & IR 2R L > DA S AR 4 B i 5% 4F
period end and of the result and cash flows of the Group for the EZEBRBERE - RALATE LT
year. In the Company’s interim and annual reports which are issued KR B IT AR R B B R D 2 2 R R S AR
within the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the Board WN > EHEGEANFZ KB - RW KL
presents a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the B s AR R T W T FEAY o B
Company’s performance, position and prospects. The published Tl 5% B 3R BRI BB A S
financial statements adopt, and consistently apply, suitable accounting FARS S HE R 2 ST BUR o

policies complying with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

C.2  The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and effective C2  EHEGMRAQAMENREEREHEL
internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest and the N ER 42 - DGRBS ROR 2 4 AR A )
Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the assistance of ZERE - FREBGTENMER/ DAL
the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the effectiveness of the WHBIR > E kA 2 D oA A B
Company’s internal control system. The Head of the Internal Audit L o INERFEA /DAL R ) A
Team directly reports to the Audit Committee. ZB g -

C3  The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for C3 gk an el JE FR B 55 5 e o B
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal DRI DA R B 3 T 22 A A% S R A0
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with HIR - e EE TR o ALH
the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee established MR8 TR RIS 2 A% 2 B B
by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has clear terms of IR o
reference.

D.  Delegation by the Board D. EHHZRH

D.1  The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved D.1 ARXAFRBEEXAERINEEEHHEEGIE
to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear directions to ZEH HEFORHAFTFGMUAET
management as to the matters that must be approved by the Board REARNFMERREZFEET > mEHE
before decisions are made on behalf of the Company. BEHTE R o

D2 The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee were formed

with specific written terms of reference that deal clearly with the D2 HEEZEERFMEE S EAWkEEE
committees’ authority and duties. Such terms of reference are made Wk RE I E > ERESIHZ B o 2 R KBk
available to the public. W5 o ST I m] A SR AT o
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

E. Communication with Shareholders

E.1 The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses the annual
general meetings to communicate with shareholders and invites their
participation in certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s
official website serves as a handy communication channel for the
shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are made from time to time.

E.2 The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and
the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors is aware of any information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not, or was not for any part of the year ended
31st March 2008, in compliance with the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all directors, it is confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions in relation to the year ended 31st
March 2008.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

AR ()
BOARD OF DIRECTORS HE
During the year ended 31st March 2008, the Company’s board of directors 200843 31 HILEEN » AN A HE G
comprised 4 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors and 3 independent VU MATES - T4 FPTER K =L Ik
non-executive directors. Individual directors’ attendance at board meetings PATESRAR - FR > MAlEFHFERFS R
during the year were as follows: ZEWIMF -

Attendance
Total number of Board meetings: 9 WP AR Y - 9% HE
Executive Directors HITEH
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive) WA o (TR 9/9 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen Gt 9/9 100%
Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul AR o 9/9 100%
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum Pl RR ek 719 78%
Non-executive Directors FHITHEFE
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung O SR 9/9 100%
Mr. CHAN Wai WS 9/9 100%
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan et 9/9 100%
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HE /M 2/9 22%
Mr. HUI King Wai R e 9/9 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BB TES
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo AR IR 9/9 100%
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung FrR e 9/9 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman) JEORR ST () 9/9 100%
Average iy 92%
The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Company HREGZMERSFRAEEARNRZ A - i
within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to AR A SERERE N ETAG S B R b - g
be assessed and managed. The Board controls the business but delegates $EH > A EBEERZHITEREARE -
day-to-day responsibility to the executive management. The Board sets HREGHIFI AL R Z R B - (B - il
the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards and ensures that its PRI B A B R AT S R R AR B H 2
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and met. In the 1 o BN R ZF4E - AL HFEIC EAE
interests of the Company, a number of matters are reserved by the Board. HGWE - A THAHKEZZEGRHFNEES
Certain matters are the subject of recommendations by the Audit Committee RAOLEE - ARMERS G B EE R
or Remuneration Committee. The Company Secretary, referring to the FIHFIRE - BB AR EF G GHRRE - &
list of reserved matters for the Board, assists the Chairman in establishing R BRI R AIAGREE - HEg &
the agenda of Board meetings. Each director may also request inclusion of BE gk iER AR o

items in the agenda. Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are open for
inspection by the directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, an independent non-executive director, acts

as Chairman of the Board, while Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive
director, acts as the Chief Executive. Their roles are segregated and therefore
are not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board. The Chief Executive is delegated
with the authority and responsible for running the Company’s business,
implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for two years, and the existing
appointments last until 31st March 2010.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the Code, the Board on 7th April 2005 established

a Remuneration Committee comprising 3 independent non-executive
directors and 2 executive directors. The remuneration committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure

for all remuneration of directors and senior management; to determine

the specific remuneration packages; to review and approve performance-
based remuneration; to review and approve the compensation payable in
connection with any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management; to oversee any major changes in employee benefits
structures throughout the Company or the Group; and to review the ongoing
appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.

Individual committee members’ attendance at Remuneration Committee
meetings during the year were as follows:

W B AT AR

L I AT ORI R R > B
T g i e b AT BOR - B2 M af
sy - S W NS o LR S
Fo R AROEN - ASTBRERER ) > B
HEAAFEHEE - AT AR TR LI
KB HE -

FPiT R
FiA FEBATE H AT B WA > BUA T 2010
E3H31HEH -

Y

BFasr AR » R 200544 H 7 H oL
MEEE > =SB A TER I TE
FEW - FHNZEEGRANF LR HER RSRE
FE N B2 HPEOR B b M 1 S e R R
T EBEHIMAL & - AT R R B AR B M
i - ARET I AL B AR B A 1 S s AT
Fem s N B B2 BT - B AN R
ARSI AR B AR R G5 R 2 ATAT R Al 5 DL et
HH R 5 A9 -

IR 22 B B A AF A L T ST 22 B ek 2
PR

Total number of Attendance
Remuneration Committee meetings: 2 FMZE R AR 2K i g3
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BARH 5B 212 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen A 2 S 212 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BB TES

Mr. CHIU Wai Mo HifR et 2/2 100%
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung (Committee Chairman,) R A (FE A L) 212 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond B EE 2/2 100%
Average iy 100%
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

In July and December 2007, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings to
review the policies for determining annual salary increments for the calendar
year 2008, to approve the payment of the discretionary year end bonus for
2007 and an incentive bonus scheme for all non-sales employees working at
the Head Office.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
of the Listing Rules are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is directly responsible for the nomination procedures, process
and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
No nomination of directors was processed during the year ended 31st March
2008.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, are as follows:

HHWNE 5

200747 H K 12H > #iNZ B e % B Bk
R AR T BOR - LA RT 2008 8 48 2 48 JF 35 4
WE > VS AT 2007 4 AR AL A6 AT S A 2 ol T
HIRSHERE S 2 SEmEAT -

HRAE I 17 45 B B Bk 1 640 3% 2 6 SN & 5 19 R
R EEL6 -

HHRH
HRYHEATERITRNZ IR - FHREKIE
HE o B RMERS S O o 200843 H31H
IREERER > HEMEERRAT (] 35 HAR A AR)T -

A S il <5

A Bl 5 NI A ST 8 el 2 0 T (B
o Rhhl) $2 I gt K9 A R IR I o3 A o
T

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt THIT

Audit services FErT iR 3,164 2,846
Non-audit services TR 68 88
Total st 3,232 2,934

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial reporting
are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice applicable before 1st January
2005, the Board established an Audit Committee on 1st February 1999,
comprising 3 independent non-executive directors, in order to monitor the
accounting and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of
the Company. During the year ended 31st March 2008, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings to consider matters including the 2007 annual report of the
Company, internal controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial information for the six months ended 30th September 2007, and the
Company’s IT control environment.

Individual committee members’ attendance at Audit Committee meetings
during the year were as follows:

®THZAY

FyESFRA20054F1 A 1 H Fi# 2 fedERE R <R
FHE TN 199942 A 1 H ozt =& War JE AT
HRABZ FHEEG » FHUBERAAFRZ G5
S A B DA S IR R L I BE o AR 22008
E3ABIHIEAFEEN » %% B a0 SITRIKE
o U B ASEAL F20074E 45~ TR -
BE 200749 A30 H 1L H 2 RS S
B4R & TS BB B AR ) B R 2 Tl BR 95 45
HE o

R A TR 3 A 25 R R R T L
o

Attendance
Total number of audit committee meetings: 2 BUEAGEHRMKY - 2K W%
Independent Non-executive Directors W7 A TEH
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo R IR 212 100%
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung AR SR 212 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Committee Chairman) SR E (5 & £ ) 2/2 100%

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system is designed to provide assurance on the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of business record, and
the compliance with Company’s policies and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems, and to ensure achievement of the Company’s objectives.

The Audit Committee has received the internal control evaluation report
submitted by the Internal Audit Team. The report summarised information
relating to the work carried out in the following areas:

. The results of selective testing of internal control procedures, assets,
and financial records of the Company;

. A general evaluation of internal control system installed by the
Company; and

. An outline of major control issues, if any noticed during the year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report and discussed with the
management.

The Audit Committee recognised that an examination of the internal control
system has been adequately executed by the Internal Audit Team and the
Committee acknowledged that the management has been progressively
installing an adequate internal control system in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Committee has also
recommended furthering the system to the area of various risks protection
aspect in order to safeguard the assets of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the Internal
Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s management and
functionally to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team is authorized
to obtain all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit Team.
Internal control reviews are arranged regularly while paying close attention
to business or operation changes. Regular audit tests are carried out to ensure
key controls are operational. The Internal Audit Team conducts other projects
and investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed up, in
order to ensure that satisfactory control is maintained.

In each half-yearly work plan, manning levels of the Internal Audit Team are
agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of the internal audit activities
and audit results are also submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT AR IR 2R TR
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2008, save as disclosed below, none of the directors and H20084E3 H31H » BN X FTEH I » RAFE
chief executive of the Company had interests and short positions in the shares, 2 J% = 34T LA B A7 84T A\ BAT AT AR B 12 13
underlying shares and debentures of the issuer or any associated corporation (2 26 LR 25 BB e (1 7825 RO B el ) 58
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance XVER) Z By ~ AR BE B M A& P A (a) IR IE

(“SFO”)) which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be 7B SO B AR B 26 352600 fE ZE T BRI sE A ST
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the — Z &5 M 5 B (o) RIEC E AT A R FETHE R
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to Sy W R <y ) ) B S0 AN ) S B 58 BT 2 ME A M
be notified to the Company and the Exchange: WA

L Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the I A2 i) JBe B Be I B B Z 57 4

Company:
Beneficial ~ Child under Controlled  Beneficiary Share TOTAL % of
Name of Director Owner 18 or Spouse  Corporation of Trust Option  INTEREST Shares
185U T
(2173 HRBHA  TAREM  ZERBM RICZEA WRE SEE RBTAL
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 3,195,162 50,000 244,820,176 1,511,050 249,576,388 50.67%
B IE note (d)  note (a) & (b) note (c)
Weta) k@ ko) W)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 357,344 244,820,176 245,177,520 49.78%
Hh note (a) &(b)
WEE () B2 (b)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 244,820,176 247,498,266 50.25%
HHREILE note (a) &(b)
WEE () B2 (b)
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,899,022 244,820,176 248,719,198 50.50%
ey note (a) &(b)
WEE () B2 (b)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 247,406,800 253,777,029 51.53%
SR note (a), (b),
€ &)
Wik~ ()
(e) k()
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

L
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the

Company: (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together
with their associates collectively controlled over one-half of the voting
power, of Luk Fook (Control) Limited which held 231,858,000 shares in the
Company. These directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares,
relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together
with their associates collectively controlled over one-third of the voting
power, of Dragon King Investment Ltd. which held 12,962,176 shares in the
Company. These directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares,
relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family were discretionary beneficiaries of
the WONG’s family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith

Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050 shares of the
Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 50,000 shares of
the Company.

Note (e)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah
Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang

Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT WS I 2 A B IR A ()
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
II.  Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk IL R AR A v N R (BB A B A

Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company i) I By B A B BBy 2 W
Beneficial Child under Controlled Beneficiary TOTAL % of
Name of Director Owner 18 or Spouse Corporation of Trust INTEREST Shares
18U T
(2173 HRBAA  TROURM  REEEM REERA RRER RBTAR
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 3,481,551 36,724,007 40,205,558 40.21%
B IE note (a)
Wit (a)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 406,556 82,853 489,409 0.49%
Hh note(b)
WL (o)
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum 1,600 1,600 0.002%
B EE
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 4,585,920 4,585,920 4.59%
HHREILE note(c)
W3k (o)
Mr. CHAN Wai 6,639,130 6,639,130 6.64%
Bt
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 7,291,338 1,093,575 8,384,913 8.38%
SR note (d)
W)
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline 60,000 60,000 0.06%
ez il
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

II.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company

(Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family were discretionary beneficiaries of
the WONG’s family Trust (the ‘Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner
of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 36,724,007 shares of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (b)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen’s spouse, Ms. FONG Anissa King, held 82,853 shares
of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung together his spouse, Ms. So Lai Sheung, controlled
the entire issued share capital of WKC Investments Limited which in turn held
4,585,920 shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang

Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 1,093,575 shares of Luk Fook
Control Limited.

YA S 2 RS B R AT ()
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TR A PRI 2w N (BB TR A
o JBe B B A B B Aoy 2 3 A (580

Bt (a)

BRI 2 KB B RFIRE (T E
FED 2Bz N o M5 AR S AT
HIRA R 2O EATRAZ B a A o 1iis%
5\ 536,724,007 1B /S48 (R I8 45 BR A 7
B2 HRTAN o

Fi 3L (b)

I A Se e 2 e A 7 K 2 A 82,853 1K
e (R ) AT BRA R B o

)

5 T 510 A A () EL A £ AR B U e L BRI WK C
Investments Limited % & & # AT IEA > a4
A HIH5 4 4,585,920 18 7S 48 (FEIR) A RS 5] ik
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FtaE(d)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March 2008, save as disclosed below, so far as is known to any
director or chief executive of the Company, no person, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

BV Y

20084331 H » BT S EEE S > AL
AR o EEATEA BT > BRAAR#EH
s FEEATBN B4 > MEEEFC A A AR A 7 A
FARBAR o - HEA RIS BN B R BIE XV
HBEB2 B35 HRE IM AN Rl 7 2 HERR BIR AT

Controlled TOTAL
Name of Shareholder Beneficial Owner Corporation INTEREST % of Shares
JBe O 44 0 B A ZYe P E HE 22 B0 Bedy w4 e
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 231,858,000 - 231,858,000 47.08%
7SR (PR A FRA F
First State Investments (Hong Kong) Limited 34,496,000 - 34,496,000 7.00%
note(a)
M (a)
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 34,496,000 34,496,000 7.00%
note(a)
L)
Note (a) [ (a)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia was a 100% indirect controlling shareholder of First
State Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (“FSHK”). In turn, FSHK held 34,496,000
shares of the Company in the capacity as investment manager. By virtue of the SFO,
Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to be interested in those shares of the
Company and relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

JB A AE K €8

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at 25/F., BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun
Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 25th August 2008
(Monday) at 11:30 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 31st March 2008.

2. To declare the final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2008.

3. To re-elect the retiring Directors, to authorise the Board to fix the
remuneration of Directors and to appoint additional Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with
or without modifications the following resolution as an ordinary
resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as defined in
paragraph (d) below) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such power be and it is
hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to make
or grant offers, agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant
Period;
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(©

(d

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted (©)
or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a)
above, otherwise than pursuant to a Rights Issue (as defined in
paragraph (d) below) or pursuant to an issue of shares under
any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to executives and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company or any script dividend
or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of shares
in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the
Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
shall not exceed 20% of the total nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date of this Resolution
and the said approval to the Directors in paragraph (a) above
shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution: (d)

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of:

1) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company:

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company is required
by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable
laws to be held; or

(iii))  the revocation or variation of the authority given
under this Resolution by ordinary resolution of the
shareholders in general meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period
fixed by the Directors of the Company to the shareholders
on the register of shareholders of the Company on a fixed
record date in proportion to their shareholdings as at that
date (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors of the Company may deem necessary or expedient
in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to

any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognized regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong applicable to
the Company).”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

JBe SR AR K 4 (40
6. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with 6. YRR RERIRIE - 25 8 R I i (SR A
or without modifications the following resolution as an ordinary BERT) T O PR R MR Pk 3
resolution:
“THAT: [ Bk
(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors (a) TE T SLO)BHIRT - — ik & e
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as defined PEHEAEA 2 B 2 7R 1 A R A W
in paragraph (c) below) of all the powers of the Company (EFE T (o) B NATiAA A
to repurchase its own shares on The Stock Exchange of —PIRETT o DA BRI BARAE T A
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or any other B & S WG 38 5 B
stock exchange on which the securities of the Company AR (TH ST 1) #8 25 B i
may be listed and recognized by the Securities and Futures IV A AT At 58 5 52 ) BT BEASIRE
Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject BRI ZHUE - TR T B A A A
to and in accordance with all applicable laws and/or the R 75 AT BE b T A A R 2
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities BT B 6 B R I aR v]
on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock exchange as AT AR A 58 95 52 7 o g ] A B
amended from time to time, be and it is hereby generally and JBe iy

unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital repurchased by (b) AN AR B () Bz Mg
the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above [l 2 AT EAREE » A
shall not exceed 10% of the total nominal amount of the share Pk H AN | OB T A T
capital of the Company in issue on the date of this Resolution BMEZ10% » M EX@)BET
and the said approval to the Directors of the Company in ARAFIFEEZ FlHHEE Z R
paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly; and il s K&
() for the purpose of this Resolution: (©) BAPRGRET S
“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this [ BAIDI ] 46 A Dok 58 1 i
Resolution until whichever is the earlier of: H 2T 9 fc R I ]
@) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of 1) AT JE R AR
the Company; SR
(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next (ii) A ] 2 A I AT AT 72
Annual General Meeting of the Company is required EGIE AN F HERT T
by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable Jih BB R A 4 2 IR i
laws to be held; or W oEk
(iii)  the revocation or variation of the authority given (i)  BEEA RO g DA
under this Resolution by ordinary resolution of the EESC DAL TIRNIG £
shareholders in general meeting.” It TARHE - |
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7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass with 7. YRR RERIRIE - 25 8 R I i (SR A

or without modifications the following resolution as an ordinary TR = VRS
resolution:

“THAT conditional upon Resolutions Nos. 5 and 6 above being [ By 5 b SC58 S RSB o P sl S8 M
passed, the aggregate nominal amount of the number of shares in the 1% AGA A ARYE b SCER 6 TH PRk 5 ik
capital of the Company which are repurchased by the Company under T AN F T 2 2 HE g P i [l AR 8w I
the authority granted to the Directors of the Company as mentioned ARG BE 2 TEARRE > AL F
in Resolution No. 6 above shall be added to the aggregate nominal HATARYE b OB S TH YR 4 BT e B ]
amount of share capital that may be allotted or agreed conditionally TG A B AR P B 2 A T (AR A
or unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors of the Company A A2 D i R e Tl A 2 JORE - NS
pursuant to Resolution No. 5 above, provided that the amount of share A AR RS B AL R B BT IR A
capital repurchased by the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total H{EAREZ10% - |

nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
date of this Resolution.”

8. To transact any other business. 8. S BRATAA] oAt I o
By order of the Board RE G

Law Tim Fuk, Paul 2 Al R

Company Secretary BB

Hong Kong, 23rd July 2008 Tk 20084723 H
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

JBe OB A K € o (4

Notes: R

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company shall be entitled to appoint another person as proxy to
attend and vote instead of him. On a poll, votes may be given either personally
or by proxy. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A member may
appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion.

The instrument appointing a proxy together with any power of attorney or
other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy
thereof must be deposited at the principal place of the Company in Hong Kong
at 25/F., BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed
for holding the meeting or the adjourned meeting.

The Company’s register of members will be closed from 21st August 2008
(Thursday) to 25th August 2008 (Monday), both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to establish the identity
of the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars and Transfer Office in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Rooms 1712-6,
17/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 20th August 2008 (Wednesay).

As at the date of this notice, the Company’s executive directors are Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive), Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. LAW
Tim Fuk, Paul, and Mr. LAU Kwok Sum; the non-executive directors are Mr.
WONG Koon Cheung, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, Ms. YEUNG Po
Ling, Pauline and Mr. HUI King Wai; the independent non-executive directors
are Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, Mr. CHIU Wai Mo, Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond
(Chairman).

JUATRE A R BB AR B & L3Rk
ZARNFIRR - AR IRAMA LR HZ
TR R E PR o R
FIREF > R AT Soh 2 ZARB - 2 &
HREERIAB ARG - 2 BAII T IR —
AU EZZRRNER—KE -

ZAT AR SCHRHE R 8 8 SR 2 S el H A
RESCHR () SRS A T8 N B 3 R W) 2 R S b
EEAZMESCIFRIA - BB R & A e 5 e
AT/ NFRT - REA RN R 2 B L2
SEHUES 5 Hudik 2 LR BB M 41858
FZ 0 TR S AT P w25k -

AT 20084E8 A 21 H (AP ) F20084F
SH2SH (BM—) (s E R H ) 5 H i
FOETE o IR ST AT SR 1338 BT o B
ile ST A R A AR AE R B AR
W PrE R P SO R A B RS ZE 72008
HESA20H (EWI=) FA4RFRT » 28 [IARL J]
s 2 B8 P B A s R S B A TR
AT > HHE 2 W IEAT 2R B AR 1835 A A
R 17HE1712-6% -

AR B AR T 2 PUTE R R
A (TEUAEER) - SN - BRI B
BIRRSEAE © JERAT RS R TSR ~ BRAERSE
A ZERIREE - R/ IMAL RSB
WS I ATEE R P R R
JEE SRR SRR ()
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Report of the Directors
HP ALY

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of gold jewellery and
gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones, and other accessory items.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segment is set out in note 6
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 53.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary
share, totalling HK$49,251,000, which was paid on 10th January 2008.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK15.5 cents
per ordinary share, totalling HK$76,339,000 and payable on 12th September
2008.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 744 B (5 [%) A BR 2 #]
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Report of the Directors (continued)

WA (B)

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HK$345,000 (2007: HK$932,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st March 2008, calculated under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$403,628,000 (2007:
HK$357,575,000).

i
A SE | A A2 N PR 2 48 KA 345,000 35 JT (2007
4F 1 932,000iT) o

% S
AR R A 2 ST R BB H R M 26

K i3 1]
R H FE A RNERE - A2 HE]R200843 H 31
H 2 ] {15 IR fifi i £5403,628,000% JC (2007 4F
357,575,000 75) ©

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial

AR B B
AEEBEIHAIH LS FREMEEESEZ
E4E - BERKAKEWT :

years ended 31st March are as follows:

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHsoo T THT THIT T
Results B3
Turnover HYER 1,598,123 1,961,720 2,126,297 2,845,147 3,367,182
Profit attributable to NN ERES DN
equity holders of JRE A Ve ]
the Company 73,816 125,795 95,695 198,059 313,989
Assets and liabilities HE kAR
Total assets MERE 709,189 832,084 898,941 1,120,029 1,706,004
Total liabilities MEE 120,451 158,775 170,749 257,144 607,639
Shareholders’ funds PR E 4 580,902 664,060 715,164 850,096 1,082,316
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither

the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung

Mr. CHAN Wai

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
Mr. HUI King Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, Mr. HUI King Wai and
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung retire by rotation in accordance with clause 99 of the
Company’s Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
Details of the proposed directors to be re-elected are set out in the circular
sent together with this annual report.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 23rd
August 2007, the Board was authorized to appoint additional directors up to a
maximum of 20 directors.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

HAEr e (41)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 58, is the founder and Chief Executive of the
Group. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. He has over 41
years of experience in the Hong Kong jewellery industry and is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. Wong
has been appointed as the Associate Director of The Kowloon Gold Silver
and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association since November 1993. He has also
been the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Jadeware Traders Industry &
Commerce Association and Chairman of Supervisory Committee of Kowloon
Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association since 2001. He was also elected as
the Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild in 2005 and appointed
as the Honorary Chairman of the First General Committee of Guangdong
Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association in 2006. Mr. Wong was
invited to be the Honorary Vice-president of the Forth Council Gemological
Association of China, Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China in 2007.
He has also been elected as a member of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Jewellery Advisory Committee and QTSA Governing Council
(Retailer Category) and elected member of General Committee of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council in 2008. Besides, he is also a member of the
Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference.

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 58, is the co-founder of the Group. Presently,
he is the Director & Deputy General Manager and also a member of

the Remuneration Committee. He has over 35 years of experience in
jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the sales operations and
administration of the Group’s retail shops. He has been appointed to various
positions over the years including: an executive committee member of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd. since 2000; an alternate
committee member of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society since
July 2004 and the Vice-Chairman of Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade,
Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association since 2005. Moreover, he
was the Vice-President of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and Commerce
Association Limited for 10 years and was elected as the Chairman of the
fifth session in 2006; executive committee member of the Tsuen Wan Trade
Association Limited since 1996 and was appointed as a co-opted member of
the Tsuen Wan District Council, Industry & Commerce Committee in 1997
for a 10-year term. He is also a committee member of the Tsuen Wan District
Fight Crime Committee since 2003 and the Vice-Chairman of the Tsuen
Wan District Economy Promotion Committee from the year 2005 to 2007.
Mr. Tse was appointed as the Chairman of the Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings
Organizing Committee for 7 consecutive years between 1999 and 2005 and
became the Vice President in 2006. He also served as the honorable President
of the 32nd session of Hong Kong Kwun Tong Junior Police Call in the
same year. On 1st July 2006, Mr. Tse was awarded the “Chief Executive’s
Commendation for Community Service” by the Government of the Hong
Kong SAR. He is also currently a Member of Macau Goldsmiths Guild.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, aged 55, joined the Group in 1996. Presently,

he is a Director, Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant, and Financial
Controller of the Group. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Law holds a Bachelor’s
Degree with honours in Accountancy. He has over 16 years of accounting
and auditing experience and over 17 years of experience in commerce. He
is mainly responsible for the accounting and finance of the Group. He also
handles communication with institutional investors and financial news
reporters.

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum, aged 66, joined the Group as a Branch Manager in
1995. Presently, he is a Director & Zone Manager (Yaumatei & Mongkok).
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau worked as a regional manager in a
listed jewellery company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has more than 38 years of
experience in retailing, purchasing and wholesaling of jewellery products.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, aged 75, has over 56 years of experience in
retailing and manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group
in 1992.

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 78, has over 61 years of experience in retailing and
manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1992.

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, aged 81, has over 41 years of experience in property
development in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1991.

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 41, is the co-founder of the Group. Miss
Yeung has over 20 years of experience in public relations. Miss Yeung was
the winner of Miss Hong Kong and Miss International of Goodwill in 1987,
and also the 4 Runner-up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Miss
Yeung was also the president of the Wai Yin Club for the year 1995-1996.
She received GIA Diamonds Graduate in 2005.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 58, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong and joined
the Group in 1999. He was admitted the solicitor of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales and of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1981 and
1982 respectively.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

A (450)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND  #3 RSB B 2 BB E @)
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors WA S

Mr. CHIU Wai Mo, aged 58, has over 41 years of experience in general MR A > S8 > B4 AR H T I H A — )
trading, property investment and management consultancy in Hong Kong By~ YRR RS LIELRER - B
and Japan. Mr. Chiu holds directorships in a number of companies in Hong L2 ME K HARAR ZHE o FR1997TFMA

Kong and Japan. He joined the Group in 1997 and is a member of the Audit A > R AEZER G LHEMERENE -
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung J.P., age 61, joined the Group in 1997 and is the FrREAPSEAE > RO > 615K > TR 19974 AR
Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit £ BAMNE S ERIEEES GRS

Committee. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of OSK Asia Holdings DA R AG W R A PR R AR AT O - B
Limited and has 37 years of experience in the securities and investment W37 I KA GRS ZERY T EBH S
industry. Mr. Hui had for years been serving as Council Member and Vice 225 BT PR B e R - RS MO B SR
Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, member of the Advisory FEAGHNERGZ B HEEPREEARLS
Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission, and was also a director R ZE 55 o oA 200444 & s 45 [ UG &1 B
of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited. Mr Hui was KP4t s G 20065FHEZ AT 4 B R EA 1)

appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in 2004 FEdkB T Z G LR « WHBATBRY LA
and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the ~ HFIARATR LHiZEGKE - B K& R
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2006. He is at present R ZEE RS BB ERES
a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchange & Clearing GREINEMMREFETEEZEGZRE - M &

Company Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and Futures TRAFENEFHEREER - FHEFWA
Appeals Tribunal and a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment @i & /NMHAMZE B L BIRIEERG LHER
Trusts of the Securities and Futures Commission. Mr Hui is also a member EWILEE o FCETR RO R BB LT Bl
of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, an appointed member ZIUMBERARAR - &M (ER) SEAERA
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation H o~ R EE () A R A T R R A B A A
Panel A and member of Government “Appointees” (independent members) FROAF 2 BSr FFATHE R o

of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui

also serves as independent non-executive director of Jiuzhou Development
Company Limited, Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited, Frasers
Property (China) Limited and Lifestyle International Holdings Limited whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, aged 55, joined the Group since 2004. He was RIS - S5 > B20044E M AASEE -
elected Chairman of the Board on 12th April 2005 and is the Chairman of R20054F4 H 12 AR A R e T > N A%
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. ZEGERFEHFMEEGME - BLERN—R
Lo is the Chairman of a private equity firm with interest in various business TEZARAT A RERE 2 FA N A FBAL 1 -
sectors. He was previously served as advisor, director and financial strategist i %4 i £ KA H L AR HF 2 KA LT R AT
in many multidisciplinary listed and major companies. Professionally, Mr. B - RS R A o AEEER O -
Lo is a Fellow Member and a Corporate Finance Designate of the Institute of 454 &34 B R B B S sF &5 M A € B G &
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a Counselor of Real Estate, USA B » M #EA 7255 ARk R E 22 % 5 BB
and a Fellow Member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, UK. Heis il ¥& 7 31 2= i ) e e B 2 RAF U BT E R &
also a member of the International Bar Association and a Certified Hospitality B ; BB E AT € € 5 DK A B 26250 o &
Educator. Mr. Lo is currently director of three other listed companies in Hong ~ JcAE B4 H M =M FHis L ARl 2 EF -

Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. AU Kwok Kau, aged 59, is the co-founder and Group General Manager
of the Group since 1991. He is responsible for overall administration of the
Group. He has over 36 years of experience in the jewellery industry in Hong
Kong.

Miss Irene CHEUNG, aged 31, is the Assistant Legal Affairs Manager of

the Group. She holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts from the University of
Toronto and a Law Degree from Osgoode Hall of Canada. She was admitted
as solicitor and barrister in Ontario, Canada in 2003, where she practised
Commercial and Family Law. She joined the Group in 2005 and is responsible
for the administration and coordination of the Group’s legal affairs. Miss
Cheung is currently a member of the Law Society of Upper Canada and an
associate member of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She is the daughter-in-
law of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Chief Executive of the Group.

Miss CHUNG Vai Ping, Icy, 38, is the Product Development Manager of
the Group. She joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible for the product
development of the Group. She has won the Best of Show Award with her
design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She
received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004.

Mr. FUNG Chi Ming, Fergus, aged 54, joined the Group in 2004. During the
year under review, he was Senior Manager in Administration and Human
Resources. Mr. Fung obtained a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
and a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science through education in Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fung has acquired extensive experience in
human resources, business and project management in various industries and
also has substantial exposure for operations in Hong Kong and China.

Mr. LEUNG Tak Fai, aged 45, joined the Group as Internal Audit Manager
since 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Information Systems Audit and Control Association. Being a Certified
Information Systems Auditor, he holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He has over 15 years of internal auditing experience.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

HAEr e (41)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Miss LEUNG Wai Sheung, Garry, aged 40, is the Corporate Affairs Manager
of the Group. She holds a professional Diploma in China Economy and
Finance, a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration. She joined the Group in 1994 and

is responsible for the Group’s coordination of project development and
corporate affairs. She is a member of the Youth Committee of the Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organizations Limited.

Miss LI Wai Ki, Vickie, aged 52, is the Jewellery Design Director of the
Group. She joined the Group in 1996 and is responsible for product design
and development. Miss Li has over 31 years of experience in jewellery design.
She won several international design awards including the 1st Greater China
Trophy For International Jadeite Jewellery Design Competition — Premium
Award, the 3rd& 4th Tahitian Pearl Trophy Asia Brooch & Parure Category-
Champion Award. And “Colourful World”, the brooch designed by Miss Li,
has won two top awards in the 9th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition,
including the Best of Show Award and the Craftsmanship & Technology
Award.

Mr. LING Hay Ming, Derek, aged 41, joined the Group in 2001 as L.T.
Manager and the Project Manager of Jewellworld.com Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company. He obtained his Master’s Degree in Business Administration
and Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering from Santa Clara University
in California, U.S.A. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ling had over 9 years of
business consulting and management experience in U.S.A. and Hong Kong.

Mr. TSANG Wai Hong, aged 41, joined the Group in 2006 as Senior Project
Manager and is responsible for the system development management. He
received a Master’s Degree in E-commerce and Internet Computing and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Studies from the University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tsang has over 15 years of experience in information technology and
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. TSUI Kin Wah, Tommy, aged 50, is the Laboratory Director of the
Group. Mr. Tsui joined the Group in 1995 and has over 18 years of experience
in purchasing and gemstone identification. Mr. Tsui is an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Gemological Association and a fellow
member of Gemological Association of Great Britain. Besides, Mr. Tsui is

a laboratory representative and approved signatory under the Hong Kong
Laboratory Accreditation Scheme. At June 2007, Mr. Tsui has been appointed
by Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation as a Sector/Subject
Specialist for a 3-year period.

Miss WONG Hau Yeung, aged 35, is the Manager in Administration and
Human Resources of the Group. Miss Wong joined the Group in 2004 and
is responsible for human resources management and training. She received
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University of Southern
Queensland. Besides, Miss Wong is the fellow of the Institute of Global
Managers and the Chartered Human Resources Consultant of Chartered
Association of Business Administrator. She has over 14 years of experience
in the human resources management of jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 31, is the Operations Manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for the execution and
implementation of the Group’s operation directions and strategies. With rich
overseas experiences and background, Mr. Wong is principally responsible for
opening the Group’s overseas branches including China and North America.
He is also in charge of the Group’s image rebranding and the redesign of its
retail outlets. Mr. Wong actively participates in management information
systems including hardware integration and software development. Mr. Wong
was appointed as the Honorary President of Junior Police Call of Kwai Tsing
District for the year 2007/2008. He is currently a member of Sham Shui Po
East Area Committee of Sham Shui Po District Office. He is the son of the
Group’s Chief Executive Mr. WONG Wai Sheung.

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, aged 47, joined the Group in 1998. Presently, he is
the Business Director. He has over 31 years of manufacturing and purchasing
experience in jewellery and gold industry. He is responsible for the purchasing
of diamonds, gems and gold products of the Group and the operation of

the Company. Mr. Wong is the brother of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Chief
Executive of the Group.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

WA (B)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. YEUNG Wai Hing, aged 43, joined the Group as the Finance &
Accounting Manager in 2002. Mr. Yeung is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 19 years of finance and accounting
experience at a variety of business organizations including listed groups.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in note 3(q)
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors’ service contracts requires the Company to give a
period of notice of more than one year or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emoluments (other than statutory
compensation). Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

The fees and other emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to industry norm and market conditions, with discretionary bonus on
performance awarded to Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, no other contracts

of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year ended
31st March 2008 as disclosed in note 32(b) & (c) to the financial statements
do not constitute connected transactions under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The related party transaction, which also constitutes a connected transaction
under the Listing Rules, is set out in note 32(a) to the financial statements and
disclosed in accordance with the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as follows:

The connected transaction in respect of the tenancy agreement entered into
with Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop of the
Group was, in the opinion of the directors, entered into on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Details of the directors’ benefits from rights to acquire shares or debentures
are set out in the following section regarding the Company’s Share Option
Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 17th April 1997, a share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was approved at
a Special General Meeting of the Company under which the directors may,
at their discretion, grant employees, including any executive directors, of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries options to subscribe for shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. A summary
of the Scheme is as follows:

(1) Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide an employee incentive
compensation plan that is based on corporate performance and
is tied to the Company’s share value with the goal of increasing
shareholders’ wealth.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

A (8)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) Yl B AT 8 ag0)

(2)  Eligible persons 2 BEHBAL
Any employees, including any executive directors, of the Company AN ) e FHATAT B AN FAT [ & >
and any of its subsidiaries. AL AT E S -

(3)  Number of shares available for issue 3) WEITIRBEH
At 31st March 2008, there were no shares available for issue since the A SR E R 200744 H 16 H 2139 > #on
Scheme expired on 16th April 2007. 20084F3 431 A M v] (s 47 2 e fhy

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each eligible person @ BAREBALZE GRS
No option shall be granted to an eligible person which would cause, EI% B RS K > mEERANH%E
at the date of grant, the aggregate number of shares over which that 2 SRR I v T By SR > B[R] % wt
options is granted, together with the aggregate number of shares the T i% 4 6B N 2 AT o) HAth f %
subject of any other options granted to that eligible person under the (A z 45 I IR N 12 1 B 8 B 47 i B
scheme (whether such options have or have not been exercised at ) T K 2 e 488 » N8B s
the date of grant) to exceed 25% of the aggregate number of shares BT K] T BT IR B > 25%

already issued and issuable under the scheme.

(5)  Time of exercise of option (5) A7 BB 2 I
An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the W R VT I M S A AR =R A
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on the date of grant W E A E ARl — S 2 0 T 458015
of an option and expiring at 5:01 p.m. on the business day preceding 1 HA R AR o] R R 5 e BR R E B 2 AR SR AT
the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. {ii o

(6)  Exercise price 6) AT
The option price per share payable on the exercise of an option: F7 ek 8 o R Ve FREAST 2 S T I AR A
(a) granted before 1st September 2001 was determined by the (a) 2200149 A 1 Hj#% 2 W

directors as being in no event less than the higher of: W HEHEE > WIAEEHER

PR ERA AT W& 2 s

@) the nominal value of the shares; and @ ety 2 mfE s &

(ii)  80% of the average of the closing price of the shares as (i) BEEIEMRAER L A ETS
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets ¥ > ZEBSiE
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the RAE 2 9 A~ S
date of offer of an option. 18280% °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
(6) Exercise price (Continued)
(b) granted on or after 1st September 2001 is determined by the
directors, in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules, as being at least the higher of:

1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; and

(i1) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

(7)  Expiry life of the Scheme
The Scheme expired on 16th April 2007.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

Options

held at

1st April

2007

200748

Eligible persons 4H1H
AL T 2 o B A

Uik DR 38 ()
6) AR

(b)

JA20014F9 A 1 H 8 2 %82 i1 2 i
JeHE > hEF T - WAHEMNEG b
TR 17EZHE > B2
THE B EE

) BB EEEER) B
2 B E R B
Z LT 5 K

() BRSO S
H B 22 BT H R A R 73]
JBethy 2 - T A o

(7) w28 AR
ZEt B R 20074E4 H 16 H BT -

T RBEERA L AR 4 2 ) -

Options
exercised
during

the year
AR AT
d 3

Options

held at

31st March

2008

120084
JA3H31H Exercise date
R Z B R HERM

Executive directors -

HITHEH

Employees under continuous contracts -

TG 491E A
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Report of the Directors (continued)

WA (B)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

During the year, no options were granted, cancelled or lapsed.
None of the directors or chief executives (including their spouse and children

under 18 years of age) had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe
for shares in the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for the year attributable

to the Group’s major customers are as follows:

ik DB B it 3 )
A N R AR IR -

B AT 8 o BT AR AR (AR 5 2 B SR
M 1875% 2 § 40 ) JEAZ AT il R AR 2 ) R
frmid N BRI Ay 2 HER

B2 92
R RAERE A > AR R EEF b S s T
adiay I

2008 2007
The largest customer RRER 16.7% 20.1%
Five largest customers combined HABRKEF G5 17.9% 33.4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had interest in the major customers noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers are as follows:

el oe APl YNk 3o SIPAE /N
F15% LA E A Z AR > MM bt 32 %
[9aPa &

EX:1Y ]
AR > AR B B A R R T ) L
I

2008 2007
The largest supplier IR E RS 11.5% 24.6%
Five largest suppliers combined A KRUEER &5 24.4% 40.3%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

At 31st March 2008, the Group had bank loans, overdrafts or other
borrowings totalling approximately $273,000,000 (2007: HK$Nil).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with paragraph 14 of the Code of Best Practice (applicable
before 1st January 2005), the Board has established an audit committee
comprising all independent non-executive directors, to monitor the accounting
and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of the Company.
Since 1st April 2007, the audit committee has held several meetings to
consider matters including the 2007 annual report of the Company, internal
controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
for the six months ended 30th September 2007, the 2008 annual report of the
Company and the Group’s IT control environment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 21st August
2008 to 25th August 2008, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 20th August 2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its directors as at 23rd July 2008, being the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the public float of shares in the
Company has remained above the minimum percentage required by The
Stock Exchange throughout the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)

WA (F)

50

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board,
LO Mun Lam, Raymond
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd July 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

%Jjﬁﬁkﬂﬂiﬁﬂn

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

EORKESMEBA

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

‘We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,

the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 120, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
¥ VA% B (48

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March

2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

AR AR A

(For the year ended 31st March 2008)

(#11200843 H31 H 1E4E 1)
2008 2007
Note HKS$°000 HK$°000
R T THIT
Turnover IR 6 3,367,182 2,845,147
Cost of sales BB AR 9 (2,529,490) (2,257,306)
Gross profit EA 837,692 587,841
Other income HAbgg A 7 93,339 49,676
Selling and distribution costs S K are A 9 (497,832) (375,504)
Administrative expenses 1T H 9 (62,118) (45,886)
Other gains HAthlle iz 8 1,278 12,586
Operating profit kil 372,359 228,713
Finance income WA 4,113 6,154
Finance costs W Es % (3,429) (179)
Finance income, net ARSI I A 10 684 5,975
Share of results of an associate JEAL— KA F 4R 20 (856) -
Profit before taxation o3 i il ¥4 1) 372,187 234,688
Taxation BiIE 11 (54,235) (35,728)
Profit for the year AF A 35 ) 317,952 198,960
Profit attributable to: JEAG % F
Equity holders of the Company AR FERERETEA A 12 313,989 198,059
Minority interests DB R 5 3,963 901
317,952 198,960
Earnings per share for profit attributable to N/NEIL TR SN
equity holders of the Company JRE Aok s ) ) 3 B 2 13
Basic AR HK 63.8 cents HK 40.3 cents
63.8¥4il 403951l
Diluted EE (3 HK 63.8 cents HK 40.3 cents
63.8¥54ll 403951l
Dividends i 95N 14 125,590 88,652

The notes on pages 58 to 120 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ar i B R R

(~\x at 31st March 2008)

(200843 H31H)
2008 2007
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
R T THIT
ASSETS Y
Non-current assets I ‘(ﬁiﬁ? G .
Property, plant and equipment YI2E ~ Wil Reiscti 17 117,463 103,130
Leasehold land and land use rights 3 2 A s it P HE 18 17,035 8,169
Interests in an associate S NI P 20 874 =
Trading licence Lo 3(f) 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits HEtEE 24,624 21,915
Deferred tax assets IR AR TE B 28 14,915 7,468
175,991 141,762
Current assets )G
Inventories e 21 1,245,500 751,854
Trade receivables & 5 RE IR 23 33,533 19,318
Deposits, prepayments and ¥4 ~ TATARIE &
other receivables oAt R MR AR T 45,712 32,561
Amount due from an associate JRE U — SR 4 R BRIA 20 19,888 -
Bank balances and cash SRAT AR S 29 185,380 174,534
1,530,013 978,267
Total assets Mg RE 1,706,004 1,120,029
EQUITY HE2E .
Capital and reserves attributable to /N HEfE A AL
the Company’s equity holders A R At
Share capital JeAs 26 49,250 49,250
Share premium ety i (8 26 58,884 58,884
Reserves il 27 897,843 687,786
Proposed dividends HEUR S 14 76,339 54,176
N 1,082,316 850,096
Minority interests DB R A 16,049 12,789
Total equity A AR 1,098,365 862,885
LIABILITIES i
Non-current liabilities FE /ﬁiﬂﬁ &
Deferred tax liabilities IR AERITE A ] 28 74 129
Current liabilities WE B E
Trade and other payables E 5 e FLAbME R IE 24 293,454 227,304
Short-term bank loans BTk 25 273,000
Taxation payable HE B 15 41,111 29,711
607,565 257,015
Total liabilities UL 607,639 257,144
Total equity and liabilities WA e AR AR 1,706,004 1,120,029
Net current assets V) B R HE 922,448 721,252
Total assets less current liabilities A W B B 1,098,439 863,014
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
WA WA
Director Director

The notes on pages 58 to 120 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

jegrucliEs

(As at 31st March 2008)

(JA20084-3 H31H)
2008 2007
Note HKS$°000 HK$’000
Bt 5 RRN T
ASSETS B
Non-current assets JE B
Investments in subsidiaries A NGIE 4 <1 19 298,887 208,887
Current assets EE E
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE AT I G ) AR TR 22 465,575 180,521
Prepayments TEA A 31 =
Bank balances and cash SRATAE IR B4 29 1,122 1,035
466,728 181,556
Total assets A E 765,615 480,443
EQUITY Hid%
Capital and reserves A e feti
Share capital lil&N 26 49,250 49,250
Share premium et A 26 58,884 58,884
Reserves G4 27 327,289 303,399
Proposed dividends PR B S 14 76,339 54,176
511,762 465,709
LIABILITIES 4%
Current liabilities TE AR
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEEAST Bf B 2 ) R TH 22 - 14,282
Other payables Hopth AT AR TE 853 452
Short-term bank loans S HASRAT BEK 253,000 =
253,853 14,734
Total equity and liabilities WA e AR AR 765,615 480,443
Net current assets i) G THE 212,875 166,822
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRE) A & 511,762 465,709
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
W
Director Director
HH HH

The notes on pages 58 to 120 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31st March 2008)
(BR#20084E3 H31 H IL4EEE)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARl HERR R A AN
Share Share Minority Total
capital  premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
¥
A By it Ak B HRE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T Tt T T T
(Note 27(a))
(HHsE27(2))
For the year ended BE20084:3)131H
31st March 2008 AR
As at Ist April 2007 1200744 H 1H 49,250 58884 741962 850,096 12,789 862,885
Exchange differences ot 724 - - 21,231 21,231 933 22,164
Surplus on revaluation of other properties  FLABZEZ T Al - - 47 427 - 427
Net income recognised directly in equity ~ EL4EHAM 43 FERR2
AT - - 21,658 21,658 933 22,501
Profit for the year AF R - - 313989 313989 3963 317952
Total recognised income for the year R WA R - - 335647 335647 4896 340,543
Dividends paid EATRE - - (103427)  (103427) - (103427)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary B E— R E A - - - - (1,636) (1,636)
As at 31st March 2008 JA20084F3H31H 49,250 58884 974,182 1,082,316 16,049 1,098,365
For the year ended BE20074:3)331H
31st March 2007 AR
As at Ist April 2006 4200644 H 1 H 48,794 57,789 608581 715,164 13,08 728,192
Exchange differences HE ot 2% - = 7,696 7,696 267 7,963
Deficit on revaluation of other properties ~ FLAtb# 32 F ks = = (3423) (3423) = (3423)
Net income recognised directly in equity ~ EIEFMER D2
WA = = 4273 4273 267 4,540
Profit for the year AT A = = 198,059 198,059 901 198,960
Total recognised income for the year FERERR 2 N A = - 202332 202332 1,168 203,500
Issue of shares (Note 26) BT (REE20) 456 1,095 = 1,551 = 1,551
Dividends paid EARE = = (68951)  (68951) = (68,951)
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder ~ —ZKMHEA Al —% D8
by a subsidiary RFIRATRE - - - - (368) (368)
Repayment of loan from a minority — MR A —2 DB
shareholder of a subsidiary R R Bk = = = = (1,039) (1,039)
As at 31st March 2007 JA20074F3H31H 49,250 58,884 741962 850,09 12789 862,885

The notes on pages 58 to 120 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
OB

(For the year ended 31st March 2008)

(BRZ20084E3 H31 H ILAEEE)
2008 2007
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
FiF 5T T#L THTT
Cash flows from operating activities EIEEE Z Bl R
Net cash (used in)/generated from S (Fr U ) EEZ
operations B 455 30(a) (57,870) 153,963
Hong Kong profits tax paid CAT AU RSB (48,502) (16,130)
Overseas income taxes paid SYRFEZAVIEES ) (1,835) (77)
Net cash (used in)/generated from SEEE () Bt
operating activities A A (108,207) 137,756
Cash flows from investing activities wEEszRewE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEEYE B KA A
and payment for leasehold land R SATA R 3,
and land use rights T & b fef R A (51,706) (28,263)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYE - BB KA 162 18,278
Disposal of non-current asset held for sale B R L 2 TR R ) - 850
Interest received B 1,882 2,438
Net cash outflow from deemed disposal iy ﬁ%—%{i Mg A2
of a subsidiary B A U TR 30(b) 1,517) =
Net cash used in investing activities PG B iy 3 4 TR AR (51,179) (6,697)
Cash flows from financing activities mEEB s ®HeVE
Proceeds from short-term bank loans JE ERAT BT 15 3R 273,000 40,000
Repayment of short-term bank loans TR HASRA T B - (40,000)
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts SRATEK B X 2 FIE (3,429) (179)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT 2 I T A O - 1,551
Dividends paid CIRALE (103,427) (68,951)
Repayment of loan from a minority — KM R — 20 8
shareholder of a subsidiary JBE AR B - (1,039)
Dividend paid to a minority shareholder — KW 2w e — 44 D
by a subsidiary JRARIR A A S, - (368)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BUETEE EL ()
financing activities B 166,144 (68,986)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Hl& kBl &S EY 6,758 62,073
DR
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April RAH1TH Z Bl R G 5E Y 174,534 108,738
Exchange differences [ 5, 25 R 4,088 3,723
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March W3A3HZ BlE RBESEY 29 185,380 174,534
The notes on pages 58 to 120 are an integral part of these consolidated 558 F 120 B 1Y B 38 b A 4 BT R 3R 10 R gl
financial statements. Ay o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

bk 5 i 5 i ek

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company’) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 3rd September 1996 as a company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton
HM 12 Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones
and other accessory items.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 23rd July 2008.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value, as
appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 5.

— Bk

FSAEAE (B ) A BRA ] (TAA A L) i
19964£9 A 3 H 76 58 3 HL4 /1 55 A 7
Pk ML 2 A PRA ] o Hoak i i R
M1k £ Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda °

AN R RIS A R (AR AL ) &
T i B B A~ SR B R
A LA B A e i 2 A S A s

bR A RSN > IS 4R A B R R I
HEIC RS > A B R 200847 A 23 H##H H
TS o

R

AN T B R R T AR A U A
e S 7 S 5 s 5 MR U ) A - B
T A E R AT
(IR ) A > f B SV i 3R 0 JER S0 AR
L ZETES

i 8 BT e FU s A v P A — B
Bk & EMA NS THREETMEE > &
I B T A T A B P g s BOR Ry
B 9 R 2 ) W o e 2
W o BB LA (R A S R
M 75 R TR 2 G PR M kS 1R o
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2

The following standards, amendments and interpretations to the

G RILHE ()

DL R MERMERT KR RRHREE
200843 7 31 A 1k BABCAF BE i ) BEAT © 7
FARZ SRR ~ ME QAT IR AR S AR
£ (8] 2 S48 R TS IR T 8 AT ] K B

standards are mandatory for the financial year ended 31st March 2008.
The adoption of these standards, amendments and interpretations to
the standards does not have any significant impact to the results and

financial position of the Group.

@ .

HKFRS 7 and HKAS 1 HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: T Uk B S s e A T W S s e
(Amendment) Disclosures”, and the complementary IR EBET A7 9% T 4l
amendment to HKAS 1, HERIE 1598 TH: #F%E K%
“Presentation of financial statements: CCHES) s & ah e H
Capital disclosures” 12 AR
[N
REH: BEAX
P #% |
HKFRIC Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 s (MBS BT s
RREAY) — R 255% 2 4 [
A R 8YE
HKFRIC Int 9 Re-assessment of embedded derivatives Hik (BEETBHRE TGS A R
RRZEAY) — fiE T A
RO
HKFRIC Int 10 Interim financial reporting and s (B BRI B S BB i &
impairment RRZEAY) — BE
AR 10%E
HKFRIC Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share s (MBS & BT s
transactions wTRERE) — RIS 258 — 4E 19
RREE 11 R A I A 58
5
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

U e B (48

F AL YE ()

DU BV 2 B R~ RS TT KR R
i A A B 200843 A 31 A IR BABUAE A
B AR 52 E G A RN - AT
> BRAN AR e R - MERAERT KR A
SN AN S A B ] 2 BB T S HIR YO
N/

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations to

the standards have been issued but are not effective for the financial

year ended 31st March 2008 and have not been early adopted by

the Group. The Group anticipates that the adoption of these new

standards, amendments and interpretations to the standards will not

result in a significant impact on the results and financial position of

the Group.

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) ~ Share-based payment — vesting conditions B A R BT R — e A

and cancellations (effective from

U (ERTA)

4 K 585 (52009

1st January 2009) F1HTHEAR)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations (effective from BB UER A0 (H20094F
1st July 2009) H3495 (EH]) TH1HREAR
HKFRS 8 Operating segments (effective from F B MER] AR5 (H 20094
1st January 2009) 84k 1H1TERAER
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs (effective from HiE g A (F20094F
1st January 2009) $23%%8 (EHT) 1H1TERAER
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial i U S A MBI ST A S IR
statements (effective from H52759% (EHT) % (H20094E7H
1st July 2009) 1 H AR
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable financial instruments and T Er st ] A AR T
(Amendments) obligations arising on liquidation 3298 & R EE Y B/
(effective from st January 2009) e (H20094E1H1H
EALACCHEN) AR
HKFRIC Int 12 Service concession arrangements s (B R 5 NIRRT R B
(effective from 1st January 2008) HwMEREZAE) (H200841H1H
— B REE 1255 AR
HKFRIC Int 13 Customer loyalty programmes s (B R 5 B A S R
(effective from st July 2008) HwMEREZAE) (H200847H1H
— AR 135 AR
HKFRIC Int 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit T (] PR e
asset, minimum funding requirements hEREEZAE)  Hom-— e
and their interaction (effective from — R REER 14957 R B
1st January 2008) AR E SHLE K
HAEEREFRE
20084E1 H 1 HE
A550)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31st March.

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as

the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent

of any minority interests. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
including any contingent liabilities assumed, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7484 8 (B F%) A FR A ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

U e B (48

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEGFHBOR &)
POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued) (@) HAWEH D
(i) Subsidiaries (Continued) ) Mg 2\ F (7))
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised ARG - SR A
gains on transactions between group companies are Pl &S ST TN
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated CEE - BRIFRZSC A RE
unless the transaction provides evidence of an TR G E L BE &
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting AR5 B R TR €85 o
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where W~ Wl 2 SRt BORE 4%
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies TN ST > DIfER B
adopted by the Group. AL R AN 2 BUOR—3
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments EARNFZ EEAME
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for N> R A R Z R E TS
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are 42 FUAS (11 A Dol e 1L 43
accounted for by the Company on the basis of TR © BiEJE A Rl i
dividend received and receivable. AR T B R B R
FEUEF A
(ii) Transactions with minority interests (i) AL BB RIS
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions ASEE A T —IHBOR
with minority interests as transactions with parties B D BB RO T 2 3
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interests Gy 1 B SR T A A
result in gains or losses for the Group are recorded THEATHIZE S o D BUK
in the consolidated income statement. Purchases SRAEAT B B T A A £
from minority interests result in goodwill, being the TR 4 2 M 2 i 5 4R i R
difference between any consideration paid and the HE o Ml DU RO T I
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net LB PR > AH A S
assets of the subsidiary. ASF AR AR AR A BELAH B RE A
Pl p g A A E E 2
HIRTHT (1) 22 38 o
(iii)  Associates i) BELA]
Associates are entities over which the Group has gk 2 O\ ] 48 A 4R 1 3
significant influence but not control, generally A K R IR WA
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and R - B — ik B A 20%
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates E50%RIMER R E
are accounted for using the equity method of o R AR ZBET)
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The DIKE £ g 5B ARRI )25
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill A (ERERR o A4 A
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified N 7 2 BB I U
on acquisition. IR Il 22 T (T B AT AT

RFHBEER) ©
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued)
(iii)  Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
when necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

(b)  Segment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited /N4 4 [#] (B [4) 4 FR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

U e B (48

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEGFHBOR &)
POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (c) Ahlns
(i) Functional and presentation currency ) TGE B IR IR
Items included in the financial statements of each of A EE BN A E 2 S
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency R FTFIE H B8R A
of the primary economic environment in which the R A T AR R
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The BZzaME (T hed
consolidated financial statements are presented ) FHE o S MBIRER
in HKS$, which is the Company’s functional and DI TOHIIR o Wn A AN
presentation currency. Al Z Jihe B W R SR B
o
(ii) Transactions and balances i)  XBRE
Foreign currency transactions are translated SN2 5 FRHEA T8 5 H H
into the functional currency using the exchange T 2 e 2 03 25 T e 4%
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. W o A A Bz S Rk
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from R4S H MESSH A LSS
the settlement of such transactions and from the (B2 B aE R AT E
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary 2 SR AR - R A
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign R -

currencies are recognised in the income statement.

(iii)  Group companies i) FEE L A]

The results and financial position of all the group AR TR R BT A E R (A A

entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper- ECRS PR e AR AR R

inflationary economy) that have a functional currency 2 B¥) 2 Uise & A

different from the presentation currency are translated ARFIHR & W > HIES R

into the presentation currency as follows: B R LA S 0 Ty =i

BT AR A -

(1) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet 1) KEERBEEN
presented are translated at the closing rate at 5 & K A A
the date of that balance sheet; HagEH Az

HE SR

(2)  income and expenses for each income ) % 18 £ 2% T 51 i
statement are translated at average exchange A 1 AR
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable B BRI
approximation of the cumulative effect b R 2 UL & B
of the rates prevailing on the transaction A% 28 5 H
dates, in which case income and expenses P
are translated at the rate on the dates of the B TEIE B
transactions); and R ki

S H 2 T R
B R
3) all resulting exchange differences are (€) é J;JEJ. g‘g % % i
9 . 112 Ty
recognised as a separate component of equity. 25 2 B
Ay e
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise retail shops and other properties such

as office premises. Retail shops are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Properties other than retail shops (“other properties™) are
stated at valuation less subsequent accumulated depreciation.
The valuation, being fair value at the date of valuation, is
determined by the directors based on independent valuations
which are performed every three years. In the intervening
years, the directors review the carrying value of the buildings
and adjustment is made where there has been a material
change. Increases in valuation are credited to the revaluation
reserve in shareholders’ equity. Decreases in valuation are
first offset against previous increases of the same property and
are thereafter expensed in the income statement. Each year
the difference between depreciation based on the revaluated
carrying amount of the asset expensed in the income
statement and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is
transferred from revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
unexpired period of leases or the expected useful lives of the
buildings to the Group, whichever is shorter.

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the purchase price of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEGFHBOR &)
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) @ % - W Rt
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off Pres LB SR & B 2 TR AT
the cost less accumulated impairment losses of each asset 5 1 S0 B 1A 1 B R B
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as KR R ERE (AR o FEFIAE
follows: JIEMIT -

Leasehold improvements ~ 20% or over the unexpired YA 20% S FEFA#Y
lease period, whichever i#) 5k 9 P
is shorter (DA
Furniture and fixtures 20% BRI ~ 2EH 1 20%
and computer equipment B
Plant and machinery 20% W IR 20%
Motor vehicles 20% RH 20%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and TR A% % AT {6 4R A AR
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. TR 45 A H AT Sl 7 A I
oo
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its i 2 2 AR T (L v 7 LA AT i
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater Ml4%E - AT E 2 IR &
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3(g)). BV B 22 EL T i e 4 R (B
3(g) e
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing HH B M 2 1 T A K T VR AR
net proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and HBERE 2 R (E L E > 57
are included in the consolidated income statement. NEFERRE -

(e)  Leasehold land and land use rights (e)  FLEE b % - b FBE
Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less TR - b R - b fel R AR % 4 A AR
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 1A Vo 24 R 4 Y M 2R e (S 1R
(if any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use (4n) BB o JAF8 5t (o
the land on which various plants and buildings are generally B Z WM T 2 T2 R
situated for a period from 40 to 80 years. Amortisation of F (75 140 2 804F ) ST 2 AUH -
leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight- 1P b R b A PR RE T 4
line basis over the period of the lease. FHE A L B ARIERHAL -

(f)  Trading licence ® RHUM
Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents a Sif # R AE R R AR 2 52 2 BUR
membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society (RN 4R 5 15 &) 11 A
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if WAREE R () 18R -
any.
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(2

(h)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, (g
investment in an associate and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation/depreciation
and are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered

an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Inventories (h)
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. The

cost of merchandise comprises raw materials, direct labour

and other direct costs. It excludes borrowing costs. Net

realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

@

t)

(k)

Annual Report 2008 £E#

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original term of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement within administrative
expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits

held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts, if any. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. The method of recognising the
resulting gains or losses depends on whether the derivative

is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if

so, the nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do not qualify
for hedge accounting, changes in fair value of any derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the
income statement within other gains/losses.
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)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities and equity @
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is
any contract that does not meet the definition of financial
liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially
at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of (i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in the income
statement over the period of the relevant liabilities and (ii)

the amount of which the Group is obliged to reimburse the
recipient under the financial guarantee contracts.

(m)

Borrowings (n)
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated

at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of

transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in

the income statement over the period of the borrowings using

the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs (0)
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any

qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that

is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended

use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income

statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEGFHBOR &)
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (p) WM BB AL P 15 BE
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of RISA BT A0 BH S35 5558 H AEA
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance £ 1B 08 T o AR BB M 1
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates and RO EATH R BITHBLER
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates S o PR S R4l 8 T B
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in TEHUA Fr et R AY 15 DL A4 B0 S B R
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation FT PR B e - Sl A 28 1 O 4%
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of T AT B TS A Y S 2
amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities. FEYEGHR A -
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability R S T 15 % ) 2 0 it e L
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 18 2 B B A SRR 2 BR T (E
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for W 2 T R 2 SLAE U - R
financial reporting purposes. However, the deferred income T > il 48 48 BT 13 B T3 U8 B AT
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of L5 (REFEMSFES ) R
an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business AT E B A 2 B R
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither ZAPE TR - RN & R R R AE B
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax B o RAE AT AT BE LA A5 B H AR A
is determined using rates (and laws) that have been enacted BCER A 2 R (KRB fE
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are FE - HLRZSE B S TE I A B R
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is S P AR ol 5 R R A BT AR L
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. BEAEE R -
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it R AE T A58 A T AE T e A2k
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against JRE B Vi 1) PT B F DAR B T R 2
which the temporary differences can be utilised. BZAHP R HER -
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences AR A FITAS B4R B B8 2 ) B Mg
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates except BN FEE A 2 T W 2 BT AA
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is M Aif A 42 [ R 42 o) ey 2 S [
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary WEIE] > DA BT I 26 B A] fE A & 7E
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. AT S AR 48 [ 22 A R R A
() Employee benefits (@ MREERHA
(i) Employee leave entitlements ) 1S VAR FEF
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised 1 B = H SR R R I
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made SERERE A INFERR o AR SR
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result BB A5 H R B 4R
of services rendered by employees up to the balance PEIRFS B A 2 AR B 2 Ak w!
sheet date. B A -
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity 18 B =4 i B o iR A
leave are not recognised until the time of leave. ZHEME E AR BB T
fEsg -
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(q9) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which
is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held in a separately administered
fund. The MPF Scheme is generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme

are expensed as incurred and are reduced by the
employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited from
the MPF Scheme by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for its relevant employees in the PRC.

The Group’s relevant employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes at 10% to 11% of

the relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonuses), while the Group contributes
23% to 34% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to
the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are
fully and immediately vested in the employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(q9) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv)

Annual Report 2008 43

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as employee share option
expense in the income statement. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
and a corresponding adjustment to employee share-
based compensation reserve over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

()

Q)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligations
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, sales returns and discounts,
after eliminated sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured and it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement. Revenue and income are
recognised as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEGFHBOR &)
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)  Revenue and income recognition (Continued) (s)  WoA& BN e (1)
Turnover represents revenues recognised on sales of goods, BT LAY & B R A
and are recognised as follows: RN
(i) Sales of goods — wholesales @) BB — AL

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has HEMEREE S shT
delivered products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler THUEE R o AR e
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell JEE i ) SR A R (AR A 58
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation RWEME > HRARBAT
that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the 1Y 35 AT VT e 5 2 4L B
products. Delivery does not occur until the products S AR IRORE - B Sh
have been delivered to the specified location, the risks ERIHERAR - HEMD
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the HE T 52 b B - B
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted RS A b O T L5t
the products in accordance with sales contract, the P - B AR S
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has EHIEUE - SR
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have REAERE > SAREMAR
been satisfied. BB IR BN BT Heleosk
ERBELTE - BRMA
HEAE -
(ii) Sales of goods — retail (i1) HEL G —
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity HERMNERERME
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually F & B YRR - 6
in cash or by credit card. A LB e BUE R A
o
It is the Group’s policy to sell its jewellery products A B BORJE 17 B %
to the end customers with a right of return within one 5 SR R A —
year. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and R EHE - BRERA L
provide for such returns at the time of sale. S R R A IR B
R A
Royalty income in respect of the use of the Group’s A A {58 P A 2 I o R SR R i
trademarks is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance AR AR R 15 e ) B BT A 4 R
with the substance of the relevant agreements. FHAEUERERR
Consultancy fee income and service income in respect of 7 BR B A 1l S % KRR R RS 2
technical support and consultancy services are recognised in e ) 2R S A B IR UL > A A
the period the services are provided. JIRBs < I e
Rebate from import agents is recognised when there is A EARER [ 11 T3 A A A BRI
reasonable assurance that the rebate will be received and all AT S B B 08I 4 A O A AR A
attaching conditions will be complied with. REFERR o

Annual Report 2008 £E¥;



R} SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Q)

(t)

()

Revenue and income recognition (Continued)
Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease. When a component of the lease payment which
is not fixed but is based on future amount of a factor, other
than with the passage of time, such as percentage of sales or
concessionaire fees, the amount is recognised as expenses as
it arises.

Dividend distribution

Interim/final dividends to the Company’s shareholders are
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are declared/approved by
the Company’s directors/shareholders respectively.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risks, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity
price risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments
to manage certain risk exposures. The use of financial
derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

()
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Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most
of the transactions settled in HKS$. The Group also has
retail and wholesale operations in the PRC, Macau,
Canada and the US, of which foreign exchange

risk is considered insignificant. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to Renminbi (“RMB”) and the United States Dollars
(“US$”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures. The Group has not entered into
any forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure as the directors are of the
view that the potential foreign exchange exposures
are not significant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose the
Group to material foreign exchange risk. The Group’s
assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in the
respective group companies’ functional currency.

At 31st March 2008 and 2007, if RMB and US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against HKS$, with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,202,000 and
HK$1,202,000 higher/lower respectively.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for the
cash at bank and bank borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in Notes 29 and 25. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risks as management considers that
the Group’s borrowings are relatively short-term and
insignificant to the Group; any reasonable changes in
interest rate would not result in a significant change
in the Group’s results. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented for interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, deposits and cash at bank included in
the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)
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Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The Group’s concessionaire sales through department
stores are generally collectible within 30 days from
the invoice date while credit sales are generally on
credit terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults in the
past. The Group’s historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables, if
any, has been made.

As at 31st March 2008 and 2007, substantially all the
bank balances as detailed in Note 29 are held in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount
of credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.

4

S 4 Rl s 4 B ()
Y05 M e L K ()

(a)

(iii)

1 £ (4

7 S 18 A R R DATEAR
w5 BRLER R A2 & P 8
EEL > HALEMBER
AT E HALE FRTAL o AR4E
A B 2 AR
— MR H 30 R A
Welml s TIE e B B 2 A5
W— B AORZ A - A4k
97 R ELR R G S A
RSO o A B UM
FolG T KRR o A
SR By B oAt B i R I
R WA B A T ik
WHEEEAN > EHRLS
EL AR w] i [E] 2 MW AR IE
(A ) 1 R A4l

Wi 5E29 HH = Al B B 7
2008 4F }220074E3 H 31 H
LRI BATEER > L
T B Hh DR TR <
BMREE > EHER A
S5 G T M T 15 SR
R o SR H PR IBUBOR R 1
S A o RO A ) £ 0L
B - HAEHE AT
HH BT R % 55 4 A A
TR AT E AR A AR



4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, payment on related debts and payment
for purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through

a combination of internal resources and bank
borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its working capital
requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 IV Rl B 4% B ()

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) SWBELBE R &R (&)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) RE)E 25 (5E)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREFIBRERLAEBEI RS
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on A3 5 H T ER AR o A&
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the 5] 4 P 2 B 2KE Bl 43 AT ) B
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in AfE o HAALE B H BT
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows M B H R N R TERTH
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be KRS E -
required to pay.
Within
1 year
ER
HK$’000
THTT
As at 31st March 2008 2008434 31H
Trade and other payables B 5 A REA RRIE 293,454
Short-term bank loans FEHASRAT B 273,663
567,117
As at 31st March 2007 #20074:3H31H
Trade and other payables B 5y I Ho A REAT HRIE 227,304
(v) Commodity price risk v) A ERE s
The Group is engaged in the sale of gold and platinum AR S 1
ornaments. The gold and platinum markets are S 2 2 o Fa Ksah
influenced by global as well as regional supply and 5532 AR DA B b I SR AR
demand conditions. A decline in prices of gold and SRR o W KB (B N Bk
platinum could adversely affect the Group’s financial A R AR A B 2 A R B
performance. The Group uses a limited number of ST o AL J il
future contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations FREZHEAL > WOE
in the prices of gold and platinum. 4 B SH BB S I B A Ak 2 Ja
B o
At 31st March 2008, if the purchase prices of gold R20084E3 A31H » i<
and platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, R 2 WE B B A a2k
profit for the year ended 31st March 2008 would have 5% > R E 200843 H31H
been approximately HK$4,880,000 or HK$5,118,000 LEAF B 2 36 R o Bl R Bk A
lower, respectively. 4,880,000 T 475,118,000
T o
At 31st March 2007, if the purchase prices of gold A20074E3 H31H - s
and platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, Lesh s 2 WEEAE BT
profit for the year ended 31st March 2007 would k5% - B ZE 200743 H31
have been approximately HK$3,870,000 lower or H k4 B 2 i A g 4 Al
HKS$1,187,000 higher, respectively. 1 %7 3,870,000 & 7T B 3

1,187,000%5 7T °
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(b)

(o

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including bank balances and cash, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and amount due from an associate,
the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables and short-term bank loans, approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as available-for-sales securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are
used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of forward
foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year are assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(o
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Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group manages the capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders
or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet, plus net (cash)/debt.
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The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at A2 H 74 2008 4F 122007 4E3 H 31
31st March 2008 and 2007: HZ EAER TR -
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T TH#IT
Total borrowings T E A 273,000 -
Less: Cash and cash W B RBEFEY
equivalents (185,380) (174,534)
Net debt/(cash) fBIH (B4 A 87,620 (174,534)
Total equity T 2 FEH 1,098,365 862,885
Total capital AR AR 1,185,985 688,351
Gearing ratio AR R 7% 0%
The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to AL H 1Y KR B AR R B S A

support the operations and development of its business in the
long term.
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Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements

are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation
charges of property, plant and equipment/useful
lives and amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation and amortisation charges where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation/amortisation
expense in future periods.

Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at each balance
sheet date.
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(©

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (c)
Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,

leasehold land and land use rights, investments in subsidiaries

and investment in an associate are reviewed for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable

amounts have been determined based on value-in-use

calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations

require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued

use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the income statement.

Current and deferred income taxes (d)
The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and other
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions.
There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination

is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such as
differences will impact the income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination in
made.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and taxation charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones,
and other accessory items.

Turnover represents invoiced sales of goods and includes an amount
of HK$625,268,000 (2007: HK$641,913,000) which was settled by
gold bullion and the gold bullion was in turn used for settlement of
trade payables.

Primary reporting format — business segments
The Group is organised mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC into two
major business segments:

. Retailing of jewellery
. Manufacturing and wholesaling of jewellery, including the
provision of technical support and consultancy services, and

quality control of jewellery products to certain licensees

Other operations of the Group mainly represent investments and
services relating to internet and software development.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  BREBRNIER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments T8 Ry X — B0 ()
(Continued)
Manufacturing and
Retailing wholesaling Other operations Eliminations Group
£ RERMS JouRs i &N
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000  HKS'000 HK$000  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000  HK$'000 HES000  HKS000
Tt Fibc  TEL  TEr THE T Tk T TR T
Turnover from external HIVEFEEH
customers
~ Sales of merchandises ~HERS 2501322 1847555 232,090 182805 - = - - LTHA 2030380
—Sales of scrap gold and -HERER
platinum and gold bullion HEBHR
etk - - 9509 81224 - = - S 9509 8120
- Others —Jith - = - 4 238 - 4w 258
Inter-segment sles Ul 94284 55805 869910 588128 - S O6414)  (6439%) - =

2595606 1903360 1,731,509 1,583,177 4,261 2543 (964,194) (643933) 3367182 2,845,147
Other income from external RAHNEFZ

custormers HAA 498 173 8015 4324 3826 470 - - B3 49676
Inter-segment other incorme P Z A - = - - 611 518 (611) (578) - -
Total FE 2596104 1905073 18054 1626420 8,698 T840 (964805) (644511) 3460521 2894823
Seament results PR 70893 163105 19667 100,140 2,380 3460 (94%2)  (8590) 425508 258115
Gain on disposal of a property E-TE - = - = - 10610 - = - 10,610
(Gain on deemed disposal of fELE—R

asubsidiary A2 Mg - = % = - = - = % =
Tnterest incorme FEIA 1,382 2438
Unallocated costs FRRRA (50944) (36,296

AL 234867

Finance costs fprs i G49)  (m)
Share of results of an associate ~ JEN—FBA A

5 (856) =

Profit before taxation Bt Al 8T 234688

Taxation il (542%)  (35728)

Profit for the year B 92 198960
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6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6 BREEEER B
INFORMATION (Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments T8 Ry X — B0 ()
(Continued)
Manufacturing and
Retailing wholesaling Other operations Eliminations Group
3 Rttt kS ] A%H

W8 007 28 2007 2008 2007 2008 207 2008 2007
HKSO00  HKS000 HKS'000 HKSON HKS'000 HKS000 HKSOM HKS'000 HKS000  HKSO0
T TEr  T#x  Thr TR Tt T TEx TR TiEx

Segment assets AR 1053815 72486 1010018 830006 1678 12620 (47834)  (518920) 1598187 1046283
Unallocated assets FORERE 107817 73746
Total assets BEE 1706004 1,120,029
Segment liilities IR IE (610,27)  (640282) (157732)  (99811) (T4)  (1649) 47834 518920 (290309) (222822)
Short-term bank loans R (273,000) =
Unallocated liabilities FAHE @330)  (3430)
Totallabilities aaf (607,639)  (257,144)
Depreciation it

~allocated -ENRE 18193 13186 9373 8070 it 18 - Y | I !
~ unallocated iR 4402 4219

982 25493

Amortisation g
- allocated ~E4R 16 16 303 133 1 1 - - 8 156
- unallocated ~KAR 13 13
Ml 169
Capital expenditure BARY
~allocated -EAR 31,793 19,112 17,200 7,45 - - - - 4899 26,357
—unallocated -k 2711 1406

5,706 28263
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Y5 Wik ()
6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  EREPIIBER )
INFORMATION (Continued)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments P08 2T X — A
The geographical analysis is divided into three regions: Hib A KT ) 45 s = A b [
. Hong Kong . it
. PRC .
. Others . E;‘i
Turnover Total assets Capital expenditure
CES Bg ;353
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$ 000
T#x Tt T#x Tt T#x TH#TT
Hong Kong i 2935495 2,690,128 1,057,684 809,032 23,161 16,587
PRC ailed 263,064 38,938 529,450 252,396 21,004 9,033
Others Hits 168,623 116,081 118870 58,601 7,541 2,643
3,367,182 2,845,147 1,706,004 1,120,029 51,706 28,263
7  OTHER INCOME 7 HABWA
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x TH#IT
Royalty income BAHEBA 57,882 29,920
Consultancy fee income [EIHE- TN 10,051 10,148
Rebate from import agents A DA E 1 17,129 1,696
Others ot 8,277 7,912
93,339 49,676
8  OTHER GAINS s A
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#L THITT
Gain on disposal of a property HhE — Y it - 10,610
Write back of provision for [e 35 B A7 1B AAS
slow-moving inventories 1,252 1,976
Gain on deemed disposal of PR — KM A A
a subsidiary (Note 30(b)) Z Wit (FEE30(b)) 26 =
1,278 12,586

Annual Report 2008 43t



9  EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 WP 2 X

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#L T
Cost of inventories sold O A 2,529,490 2,257,306
Staff costs (including directors’ B A (B )
emoluments) 227,466 176,772
Operating lease rentals in respect of ~ THL ZBEFRETHE Z 4%
land and buildings 126,685 103,188
Depreciation of property, plantand 3£ ~ /5 KT8
equipment 31,982 25,493
Auditor’s remuneration T2 BTN 4 3,164 2,846
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - R KA
and equipment ZJEiE 1,027 2,124
Amortisation of leasehold land and ~ FHE b S 4 b (57 i RE#E &5
land use rights 341 169
Deficit on revaluation of other Ho A2 2 Ak A
properties 46 269
Others At 169,239 110,529
Total Fiok ) 3,089,440 2,678,696
Representing: 15 -
Cost of sales B A 2,529,490 2,257,306
Selling and distribution costs B o E R 497,832 375,504
Administrative expenses T A 62,118 45,886
3,089,440 2,678,696
10 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 10 BN OFAS ) i 3
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T#EIT
Interest income FLE A 1,882 2,438
Net exchange gain AR A v BE 2,231 3,716
4,113 6,154
Interest on short-term bank loans HRITERZ FE (3,429) (179)
684 5,975
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

U e B (48

11

TAXATION 11 BH
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt
Hong Kong profits tax T s F S8
— current — R 59,120 37,047
— over-provision in prior years — EAF AR (108) (2,316)
Overseas taxation TSN TE 2,725 2,702
Deferred taxation (Note 28) PESLALIE (Fff5E28) (7,502) (1,705)
54,235 35,728

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 17.5%
(2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, B 7548 & A R A (“Luk Fook Jewellery
(Guangzhou) Co., Ltd”) (“LFGZ”), a subsidiary of the Group, is
qualified as foreign investment production enterprise and has been
entitled to a two-year exemption from income taxes followed by a
50% reduction in income taxes for the ensuing three years from its
first profit-making year in 2007.

Pursuant to the new PRC corporate income tax rules promulgated
in 2007, LFGZ is subject to a tax rate gradually increased to 25%
towards year 2012.

T s R AR Bl ) 5 A 4 B A 5 e S s
YRR 17.5% (20074 17.5% ) 12 44 HE
o AN R 2 B IE TS AR A A R
SR Yi ) 44 A A [ SE A T 7 1B K IR
REHE -

R BE A B o 1 £ 3 P 45 B A ) SRR
A [ 2 B B N F R M S AR A TR
AL (TN SR D) FF Ao BG4
BB SEER B A BTGB W AF R HL
TR B o IR R
A E BI2007 458 A4 58

AR 2007 45 B M 2 3 o 0 4 S B 5
Wt > BN 75 e ) T 15 B B R B AR AR
ZE20124FH125% ©
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TAXATION (Continued)

11

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate in Hong

Kong as follows:

B 5D

A T AR i it ) L G ) A o

G 2 BB AT

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Profit before taxation [R5 il Y A1 372,187 234,688
Less: Share of results of an associate ¥ : EAL— R/ 7 248 (856) —
371,331 234,688
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% #&Bi2%17.5% (20074 © 17.5%)
(2007: 17.5%) A BLHE 64,983 41,070
Effect of different taxation rates HoAth =] A B AR [R] 2 2
in other jurisdictions (1,244) 272
Effect of tax holidays of the PRC w2 B N W) S M 2 R
subsidiaries (13,932) (936)
Income not subject to taxation JHRRBLZ I A (394) (5,421)
Expenses not deductible for taxation AN A 181 2 3
purposes 3,334 2,724
Over-provision in prior years FEAF B R BRI (108) (2,316)
Unrecognised tax losses KRB BIE G 1R 1,621 765
Utilisation of previously unrecognised B Fl DA AW 3B T s 15
tax losses (25) (430)
54,235 35,728
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

U e B (48

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 AR vl HERR R A A AN A
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt AR T B R R N R 2 AN R £
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of FA A JREAL 16 1 25 149,480,000%5 7T (2007
HK$149,480,000 (2007: HK$59,951,000). 4F 1 59,951,0004570) °
13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 RN
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the TR FI IR A LN AR A A
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of JRE Ak A< 4 9] 34k 1) 313,989,000 # T (2007
HK$313,989,000 (2007: HK$198,059,000) and the weighted average 4F 1 198,059,000 7C) [ AF A B A T8
number of 492,507,850 (2007: 491,645,066) ordinary shares in issue J§ 2 i HESF- 15 8492,507,850 1% (20074F :
during the year. 491,645,066/8%) 515 °
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the T R R T AR AN R RE AR A A
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of JRE Ak A< 4 9] 34k 1) 313,989,000 # T (2007
HK$313,989,000 (2007: HK$198,059,000) and the weighted average 4F 1 198,059,000 7T ) S 4F 1A L R AR B
number of 492,507,850 (2007: 491,645,066) ordinary shares in AR\ ) Wi IRORE ST B4Rt 2 T A o SR AT (S
issue during the year after adjusting for the effects of all potential T R REAEAT (T AR 25 A BB B AT 2
dilutive ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration if all A B AE R A A AR AR
outstanding share options granted under the share option scheme of T AT 5 4 I i RE T~ £4 #50492,507,850 1%
the Company had been exercised. (20074 : 491,645,066/1%) 715
14 DIVIDENDS 14 BE
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT TH#TT
2007/08 interim, paid, of HK$0.10 ELIR2007/084F H I S,
(2006/07 interim: HK$0.07) I 2 0. 107 7T
per ordinary share (2006/074F B AL : 0.07H#57T) 49,251 34,476

2007/08 final, proposed, of HK$0.155  #£Uk2007/084F & A 1A 5.

(2006/07 final: HK$0.11) B 8 10,1559 7T (2006/074F B

per ordinary share (note) FIABE 0.1 70) (FFEE) 76,339 54,176
Note: B 5T
At a meeting held on 23rd July 2008, the directors recommend the payment R20084F7 H23 H 84T 2 &k b > E F ARk
of a final dividend of HK$0.155 per ordinary share, totalling HK$76,339,000. B YR AR R 3 2 0155 0T B 3k
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General 76,339,000%57G © F7 LS ZE FR BRI 2008478
Meeting on 25th August 2008. This proposed dividend is not reflected as H25 H 84T 2 IRAUR AR & EHUE o BRI
dividends payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an S A A A R T P R e IR A RS >
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st March 2009. R I 4 5 20094E3 31 H R4 BE 2 R ¥ 28

AGHIR
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15 RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 15 BARHEFDEA
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl T
Net contributions to pension plans REF G R R LHZ
charged to the consolidated IR R R A
income statement 7,546 6,641
At 31st March 2008, there were no unutilised forfeited contributions JA20084F3 H31 H » M A B A 2 W Wi fit
(2007: Nil). K (20074F : fiE) ©
16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 HPFRFBATIA HM 4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HHWNE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the A TR AR A 0 ) 7 2 T 4 AR
directors of the Company during the year were as follows: BI
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T
Fees i 960 933
Salaries, allowances and Brax - B REYA
benefits-in-kind 21,832 15,692
Performance and discretionary &R E{EIIEEEH 2 AEAL
bonuses 7,766 4,878
Contributions to pension plan  RR&FH| 4K 254 248
Total payable and expensed in JEEARIE K2 £ BA B R 3=
the financial statements S 2 AR 30,812 21,751
Benefit from exercise of AT ol W RO HE BT 75 0 4
share options - 3,286
30,812 25,037
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

S5 R e ()
16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 P BB B4 )
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) HEBEWEED
The remuneration of each director is set out below: BERZMESWT -

For the year ended 31st March 2008

BE 2008423 H 31 H LA ¥
Performance Employer’s
and contribution
discretionary to pension
bonuses plan
kB R Total
Fees Salaries B BkEE# emoluments
Name of Director kA w4 s ZAeH 2% T 4 M 75
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T T T
WONG Wai Sheung wRE 55 18,540 4,043 121 22,759
TSE Moon Chuen LS 55 948 1,125 43 2,171
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul NG 55 1,167 2,021 52 3,295
LAU Kwok Sum Pl 2R 55 832 577 38 1,502
WONG Koon Cheung I 55 115 - - 170
CHAN Wai Brfa 55 115 - - 170
LEE Shu Kuan B 55 115 - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HE%

(note) (FftaE) 55 - - - 55
HUI King Wai FFRE I 110 - - - 110
CHIU Wai Mo* A 130 - - - 130
HUI Chiu Chung* Friehe 130 - - - 130
LO Mun Lam, Raymond* [ R 150 - - - 150

960 21,832 7,766 254 30,812
Note: B EE -
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has entered into a service contract M E F /NMEE R OB R IR T AL
with a subsidiary of the Company for her exclusive services for the B o DAHE B A AR A E S B RS -
promotion of the products and services of the Group (see also Note BLARN T — R A W TSR & 4
32(b)). (73 RMEE32(b)) -
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 FHHREHHETHABMNE @)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) HFWE&E)
For the year ended 31st March 2007
#WE20074E3 H31 H ILAERE
Total
payable and
expensed
Performance Employer’s in the Benefit
and contribution financial from
discretionary topension  statements exercise
bonuses pan  EMRE  ofshare

##8  Housing By ROMwE options Total

Fees  Salaries  MUSBEM  allowances BfRAEH WS FHMBE  emohments

Name of Director it LA o 2 RREEW b2 ZUE BBNE  MeAuE
HEKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HEKS$000

Tibx T Tibx T Tibx Tibx Tibx T

WONG Wai Sheung whEH 5 12,547 2549 = 17 15,268 386 18,554
TSE Moon Chuen il 5 919 iy = # 1,734 = 1,734
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul B 5 1082 1275 = 50 2462 - 2462
LAU Kwok Sum Bll% 55 799 37 - 3 1229 = 129
WONG KoonCheung ~~ H7% 55 115 = - = 170 = 170
CHAN Wai i 5 115 = = = 170 - 170
LEE Shu Kuan 2 5 115 = = = 170 = 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HER

(note) (Hfzh) 55 - = - = 55 = 55
HUI King Wai Ei 110 - = - = 110 = 110
CHIU Wai Mo* il 123 = = = = 123 = 13
HUI Chiv Chung! Fi 13 = = = = 13 - 13
LOMun Lam, Raymond® 7 137 - - - - 137 = 137

93 15,692 4478 = 248 21751 386 25037

#  Independent non-executive directors. t OB R ATE R
No directors waived their emoluments in respect of the years B 220074 K 20084E3 H 31 H Ik
ended 31st March 2007 and 2008. AERE S 4 I 4 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

S B B ()
16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 4 R R SR A B4 50
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) THABRHEMAL
Among the five highest paid individuals, four (2007: four) A BRI L E T 4
of them are directors of the Company and the details of their (20074F : M%) By AR AR »
remuneration have been disclosed in the preceding paragraph. WEZ MEFFE O E B -
The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual are LB o R N o 2 B 4 B A
as follows: T
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT T
Salaries, allowances and e Bk REYA L
benefits-in-kind 1,425 1,407
Performance and discretionary %725 1% 25k~ £ 4L
bonuses 1,895 1,195
Contributions to pension plan  #RAREFIEIfHK 54 52
3,374 2,654
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17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 W3 > BB Kol
e

Group
Furniture and
Leasehold fixtures and
Other improve-  computer  Plant and
properties ments  equipment  machinery Motor
b MEWE KA RE WG vehicles Total
/ES Rt REMEH RB% A A
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T T T T T T
Cost or valuation AE S A
At Ist April 2007 JA20074F4 H1H 60,596 68,867 38,961 19,641 4,958 193,023
Exchange adjustment [ 8% 5,339 935 756 1,522 303 9,055
Additions, at cost WNE O RHAE 2,102 29,652 7495 1915 1,904 43,068
Revaluation adjustment HiE 381 - - - - 381
Deemed disposal of L&

a subsidiary — XM B AT - (2,274) (455) (2,051) (281) (5,061)
Disposals Hie& (579) (11,039) (1,628) (56) (347) (13,649)
At 315t March 2008 #20084:3 431 H 68,039 86,141 45,129 20,971 6,537 226817

Accumulated depreciation 2REiTE
At Ist April 2007 JA20074E4 H 1H 1,485 47,067 27,594 10,290 3457 89,893
Exchange adjustment T 5o 2 567 520 956 225 2,270
Charge for the year AR 1,389 19,778 5,869 3,834 1112 31,982
Deemed disposal of RIELE

a subsidiary — %M B - (1,309) (136) (778) (108) (2331)
Disposals & (36) (10,792) (1,248) 37) (347) (12,460)
At 31st March 2008 JA2008E3H31H 2,840 55311 32,599 14,265 4339 109,354

Net book value AR
At 31st March 2008 JA2008E3H31H 65,199 30,830 12,530 6,706 2,198 117,463
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

SV 25 ke Wi i ()
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y3 ~ B Bl (o)
(Continued)
Group (Continued) AL ()
Furniture and
Leasehold  fixtures and
Other improve- computer Plant and
properties ments equipment machinery Motor  Construction
b HEWE G- %E i vehicles  in progress Total
W% kb RERHE Sl RE IR G
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T T Ti#T T
Cost or valuation A B
At Ist April 2006 J#20065£4 5 1R 59,159 59,759 35,544 16,254 4422 5097 180,235
Exchange adjustment M SR 1,712 316 564 1,386 280 526 47784
Additions, at cost RE > EHAE - 19490 4755 2,406 256 1,356 28,263
Revaluation adjustment fhA% (3,692) = = = = = (3,692)
Transfer upon completion ¢ Thpsfs 5,107 1272 - - - (6,979) -
Transfer between categories OV - (126) 126 - - - -
Disposals itk (2,290) (11,344) (2,028) (405) - - (16,567)
At 31st March 2007 200743131 H 60,596 68,867 38961 19,641 4958 - 193,023
Accumulated depreciation ZHNE
At 1st April 2006 JR20064F4 1 H - 42,686 23356 6,609 2417 - 75,128
Exchange adjustment TS - 121 300 59 130 = 1,147
Charge for the year KPR 1485 14427 5307 3364 910 = 25,493
Transfer between categories AV - 93) 93 - - - -
Disposals irk:4 - (10,074) (1,462) (339) - - (11,875)
At 31st March 2007 42007435310 1,485 47,067 27,594 10,290 3457 - 89,893
Net book value FiE (A
At 31st March 2007 42007435310 59,111 21,800 11,367 9,351 1,501 - 103,130
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y3 ~ B Bl (a0

(Continued)
Group (Continued) A1 ()
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows: A E 2 RAME S A E AT
Furniture and
Leasehold fixtures and
Other improve-  computer  Plant and
properties ments  equipment  machinery Motor
Bk AEHE  BR - KE 1) vehicles Total
% %6 REMH BBk a L Hm
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
THET THET T T T T
At 31st March 2008 72008431131 H
At cost JA(E - 86,141 45,129 20971 6,537 158,778
At professional valuation — 2008 B2l — 20084 65,199 - - - - 65,199
65,199 86,141 45,129 20,971 6,537 223,977
At 31st March 2007 #200743H 31H
At cost JEAE - 68,867 38,961 19,641 4958 132,427
At professional valuation —2007 B34 {H —20074 59,111 - - - - 59,111
59,111 68,367 38,961 19,641 4,958 191,538
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Y5 i a Wik ()
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 Y3 ~ B Bl (a0
(Continued)
Group (Continued) A1 ()
Net book value of other properties are analysed as follows: HAbY 2 BRENFEZ TR -
Group
A 4R 1
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x TH#IT
In Hong Kong, held on: TERWE N5 A
— Leases of over 50 years —504ELL EFRA) 332 360
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10ZE504-FHA) 279 310
611 670
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEAR WS LA [ % T 51 7 R
— Leases of over 50 years —504F LA EFHA) 535 498
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 102504 FFHA) 64,053 57,943
64,588 58,441
65,199 59,111
Other properties were revalued on the basis of open market value H A Y 2 B 8 57 B £ A (E Al Asset
at 31st March 2008 by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent Appraisal Limited % /2 2008 4F3 H 31 H Z
professional valuer. AT EIEHE R Al
The carrying amount of these revalued other properties would have (B Eofth ) 2E D) A (B B R P ) 2
been HK$66,287,000 (2007: HK$60,576,000) had they been stated TEW RS E > HI) 5 4k 1R T (2 &
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 66,287,000 #5 TG (2007 4F : 60,576,000 %
losses. ) o
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE

18 ALEE 1 3 B - M fi B

RIGHTS
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#LT T
Cost JHAR
At 1st April R4H1H 9,083 14,026
Addition INE 8,638 =
Disposal i - (5,600)
Exchange difference T So. 22 %8 650 657
At 31st March W3H31H 18,371 9,083
Accumulated amortisation Bt 4
At 1st April W4H1H 914 1,191
Amortisation for the year RN 341 169
Disposal e - (500)
Exchange difference i bo, 75 %8 81 54
At 31st March W3H31H 1,336 914
Net book amount RETAT i (E
At 31st March W3H31H 17,035 8,169
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

S 5 A 0 B e (4

18 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 18 ALEE L3 e - 3B A FHAE )
RIGHTS (Continued)
The net book value of leasehold land and land use rights are analysed A b S bl R 2 SR TET VR (L 20 T
as follows: M
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT THTT
In Hong Kong, held on: TERWIE T A A -
— Leases of over 50 years —504ELh EAHAY 962 978
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10ZE 504FEFHAY) 298 305
1,260 1,283
Outside Hong Kong, held on: GEESMEE T A
— Leases of over 50 years —504E LA EARAY 778 791
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10Z504FFH4) 14,997 6,095
15,775 6,886
17,035 8,169
19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 WBA 8
Company
A
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#L THTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEWHHE > HRAE 298,887 298,887
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financial statements.
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20 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 20 R—HKBB A ZHELR

Group
#M
2008 2007
HK$000 HK$’000
T#x TH#IT
Share of net assets, as at 1st April JEAG & A VE - R4 1H - =
Share of results of an associate JREAL — SR W) SRR
— Loss before income tax — BRI S BRI TE (856) -
— Income tax expense — TS BiBA 3 - -
(856) -
Amount retained as investment in A —FE & AT
an associate (Note 30(b)) BOE 2 BRIE (F3E30(b)) 1,730 -
Share of net assets, as at 31st March ~ JEAG & A FE > W3H31H 874 =
Amount due from an associate JEM— R w iR TA 19,888 =
Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and FEW — F B ) 2 BRTE & 3T > %
repayable on demand. BRI R AE R -
Particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31st March 2008 are as AN E [F B N TR 20084E3 A 31 H 2 261
follows: UM
Place of Particulars of % of attributable
Name incorporation issued share capital interest held indirectly Principal activities
E1 iR R L] CEAT IR A ) 3 2Yp e =
2008 2007
Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 51% Manufacturing and wholesale of
Company Limited diamond products
ANEFEAHRAF it 6,120,000% 7 S 7 R Bt
21 INVENTORIES - GROUP 2 ks —
At 31st March 2008, inventories carried at net realisable value R20084E3 H 31 H » Henl S B R HIHE Y
amounted to HK$916,000 (2007: HK$1,381,000). 17 1% 55,916,000 75 (2007 4F : 1,381,000
WIT) .
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

S5 R e ()
22  AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES — 22 JE W 7 B 4% B ) 2 i) M 95 —
COMPANY A
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. PSR IS B S B R AR
3 o
23 TRADE RECEIVABLES 23 BSMEBORE

The Group’s sales are mainly on cash basis. Credit sales are mainly

for the Group’s wholesale customers with credit terms of 0 to 90 days.

ASE ER RO 8 T A AT - IR
EERAEEZMBERF M > fFEY

F0ZE90H -
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B 5 REMCRRIH 2 BRI AT 4T
Group
M

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THTT
0—30 days 0-30H 26,978 17,951
31 -60 days 31-60H 3,874 933
61 —90 days 61-90H 2,488 55
91 — 120 days 91-120H - 168
Over 120 days 120 H 193 211
33,533 19,318

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair

values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

5 5y W SR T 2 R T L B HC % - (B A

F

A4 T B2 5 B SR 2 R T B DA 31 £

denominated in the following currencies: W I BLAL
Group
&M

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x AR
HKS$ T 18,933 10,826
RMB NN 13,741 7,333
Other currencies HAth & 859 1,159
33,533 19,318
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23

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23
The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired

has been assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do not have

defaults in the past.

As at 31st March 2008, trade receivables of HK$83,000 (2007:
HK$379,000) were past due but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment losses. These trade receivables relate to a number

of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The Group does not hold any collateral as security over these
customers. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables which are past

B 50 W OV (1)

S A4 1 B 5 B U M LA SR
BIERSEABE TR LR B
T BORBERT RS © BUA B T 7B 7 0 48
i ST -

JA20084E3 A 31 H » &5 REYLHRIE 83,000
W5 IC (20074F © 379,000% 70) EL 3@ » M
A [ 5N AR LR R A o XSRS T
W R TV 2 22 44 3 A 17 40 46 X R0 8% 2 0
SEET o ANSE NG LR K P R AT
ATHEAT o R% 5 ARG A (E 2 B 5

due but not impaired is as follows: FENHRIEHRES AT 80 T
Group

#H
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THTT
91 to 120 days 912 120H - 168
Over 120 days 120 H 83 211
83 379

During the year ended 31st March 2008, no trade receivables were
impaired (2007: Nil).

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 74 4E [#] (B [) 4 FRA 7
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24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 B 5 R I AbREATHIRME
525 T FC A JE AF HEIFL ) 60,45 54 5% B A+ B
TE 142,434,000% 7T (20074 © 123,402,000

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
HK$142,434,000 (2007: HK$123,402,000) and their ageing analysis

is as follows: WIT) > HEREE AT
Group
£H

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
0—30 days 0-30H 91,607 80,352
31 -60 days 31-60H 33,889 33,702
61 —90 days 61 -90H 11,185 5,591
91 — 120 days 91 -120H 3,316 3,360
Over 120 days 120 H 2,437 397
142,434 123,402

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their B 5 K oA AT B TE 2 B T (R B LN O
fair values. {EM -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are 74 5 B 5y R o Ath AN BE TE 2 BE T {8 LA

denominated in the following currencies: N H e s R
Group
#M

2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x THIT
HKS$ W0 202,521 164,244
RMB PN 60,593 40,687
US$ EH 26,500 20,481
Other currencies Hofth £ 3,840 1,892
293,454 227,304
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25 SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

25

Joi 1 AT B

(a) The exposure of the bank loans of the Group to interest rate (a) 74 [ SR AT B 3K BT T R R A )
changes and the weighted average effective interest rates are JEUBSE B AT Y B BRI
as follows:

2008 2007

HK$°000 HK$’000

T#xT THsTT

At floating rates R 273,000 =

Weighted average effective TIRET- 2 B R 2

interest rates 2.87% -

The carrying amounts of the short-term bank loans are 45 W SR AT B 3K 2 B T LAV T 5t
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair values. & > 0B ©

(b)  The Group’s banking facilities, including borrowings, trade b) AREZRTHE (REEE

finance and other general banking facilities, were secured as

B 5 T R At — AR SR AT )

follows: J5LA R 51 IE B HEHH
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THIT
Guaranteed by the Company  HIAR4E [ #E {1 30,000 20,000
Unsecured BN 324,000 99,000
354,000 119,000

Corresponding banking EL 38 A ESRA TR

facilities utilised 273,000 -

At 31st March 2008, the Group had undrawn committed
borrowing facilities of HK$81,000,000 (2007:
HK$119,000,000) which are expiring within one year.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited /N4 4 [#] (B [%) 4 FR A 7
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 26 JBEAS BB v A

(a)  Share capital (a) JBAR
Company
Al
2008 2007
No. of shares HK$°000 No. of shares HK$’000
JBAY¥H T#x g i T
Authorised: RIE
Ordinary shares of MR EO. 1T
HK$0.1 each szl 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid: 2347 RAE -
Ordinary shares of BRI {H0.1H 7T

HKS$0.1 each gL
At 1st April #R4A1H 492,507,850 49,250 487,943,850 48,794
Exercise of share Gigid g
options - - 4,564,000 456
At 31st March M3A31H 492,507,850 49,250 492,507,850 49,250
(b)  Share premium (b)  IBeprafE
Company
A
HK$’000
TH#IT
At Ist April 2006 R20064F4H 1H 57,789
Exercise of share options AT BRI RE 1,095
At 31st March 2007 and 2008 /42007 % 200843 31 H 58,884
The Company has a share option scheme under which the AN BT A REST B 5 RN >
directors may, at their discretion, grant employees, including T TR I R T BT RT R AR
any executive directors, of the Company and/or any of its R S mANT &
subsidiaries, options to subscribe for shares in the Company, B HAT A B 8 Bl 2 8 B (B4
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the share AT EE =) 3% 0 B i DL 23
option scheme. The share option scheme expired on 16th AN T REAY o BEREREST BT 0
April 2007. 20074E4H 16 H JE T
During the year, there were no options granted, exercised or SRR > A R MR - AT
lapsed (2007: Nil). IRk (20074F © 4E) o
At 31st March 2008, there were no share options outstanding FA20084FE3 H31 H » 3 44T f] B
(2007: Nil). TR A7 5 (20074 : E)
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27 RESERVES 27  finf

(a)  Group (a HH
Capital Revaluation Exchange Retained
reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
BB TR HE 5 e AN 4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TH#T T T T
For the year ended H#20084:3)131H
31st March 2008 IEAESE
At It April 2007 T#20074F4 A 11 135713 2,603 9,302 504,344 741,962
Profit attributable to equity ~ AARIER A A
holders of the Company el - - - 313,989 313,989
Exchange differences TS 2% - - 21,231 - 21,231
Surplus on revaluation of s Bk
other properties - 427 - - 427
2006/07 final dividend paid ~ EF2006/074E EE A S - - - (54,176) (54,176)
2007/08 interim dividend paid ~ ©{2007/08F F FHAIBE &L - - - (49,251) (49.251)
At 315t March 2008 120083 431 H 135,713 3,030 30,533 804,906 974,182
Representing: &
Reserves [t 135713 3,030 30,533 728,567 897,343
Proposed dividend RIS - - - 76,339 76,339
At 315t March 2008 120083 A31H 135,713 3,030 30,533 804,906 974,182
For the year ended KE20074:3)1310
31st March 2007 IEAERE
At It April 2006 1#20064F4 4 11 135713 6,158 1,606 465,104 608,581
Profitattributable to equity ~ AARIER A A
holders of the Company TEft i A = = - 198,059 198,059
Exchange differences TS 2% - = 7,696 = 7,69
Deficit on revaluation of BN IE YA G
other properties - (3423) - - (3423)
Transfer of revaluation reserve 1t 5 — T S Flft
to retained earnings upon B e
disposal of a property - (132) - 132 -
2005/06 final dividend paid ~ E12005/064F EE A S - = = (34475) (34475)
2006/07 interim dividend paid  EL1F2006/074F B I EL = = = (34.476) (34476)
At 315t March 2007 200743 A31H 135,713 2,603 9,302 504,344 741,962
Representing: &
Reserves fithe 135713 2,603 9,302 540,168 687,786
Proposed dividend RIS - = = 54,176 54,176
At 315t March 2007 200743 A31H 135,713 2,603 9,302 504,344 741,962
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27 RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

()
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27  finf )

Company (b) A
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
B R A Ham
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
TG TG TG
For the year ended BE20084E3H31H
31st March 2008 IEARJE
At Ist April 2007 R20074E4 H 1H 298,687 58,888 357,575
Profit for the year A | - 149,480 149,480
2006/07 final dividend paid CA2006/074F B A B 2. - (54,176) (54,176)
2007/08 interim dividend paid CA52007/084F B H i 1 EL - (49,251) (49,251)
At 31st March 2008 A20084F3H31H 298,687 104,941 403,628
Representing: 3k
Reserves fit 298,687 28,602 327,289
Proposed dividend BEURIBE - 76,339 76,339
At 31st March 2008 A20084F3H31H 298,687 104,941 403,628
For the year ended RE20074E3H31H
31st March 2007 )13

At Ist April 2006 200644 5 1H 298,687 67,888 366,575
Profit for the year A3 U6 ) = 59,951 59,951
2005/06 final dividend paid EA2005/064F A WIS, = (34,475) (34,475)
2006/07 interim dividend paid A 2006/074F B #1112, = (34,476) (34,476)
At 31st March 2007 200743 H31H 298,687 58,888 357,575
Representing: Rk
Reserves fitiAts 298,687 4,712 303,399
Proposed dividend HEUR IS = 54,176 54,176
At 31st March 2007 200743 H31H 298,687 58,888 357,575

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares
of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company
in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, provided that the Company would, after the
payment of dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and its
share premium. At the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

(©) ANAZEHEBIHANFL
A2 Luk Fook Investment (B.V.1.)
Limited 2B B #5478 48 I 171 2517
Je s 2 TI{E - BEAS S BN 199747
ST Ve S A B A B A W) 2 (A
W& 2 25580 - RIE EFEE 19814
NFVE (BIERT) BB TR
BT > WEARATE A EME
IR B4R > WZEBER ARSI
e B A OAME B B IRE > A&
INE 2 G ] S BLEAS AR g DR
HAEH ~ HE 87 ReA L=
W (E 2 4R - LUEE BN S
WEHAGKSET T EASAR

W 24 702 G 2



28 DEFERRED TAXATION 28 EHLBLIE

Deferred taxation of the Group is provided in respect of: 2 42 [ R S B T Y Bt T 3 4% TE AR B B
f#i -
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on
allowances closing inventories Total
BUls ol sl WAL R Z R BB Hm
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
Ti#én T Tién T T#x T

At Ist April RaH1H 2,268 2,066 5,071 3,568 7,339 5,634
Credited to the income FrAEG R
statement (Note 11) (BfHsE11) 602 202 6,900 1,503 7,502 1,705
At 31st March 3H31H 2,870 2,268 11,971 5,071 14,841 7,339
Representing: ik
2008 2007
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T Tt
Deferred tax assets IR AE LA & 14,915 7,468
Deferred tax liabilities R SE ol T A (74) (129)
14,841 7,339
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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29 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 29 SATE B BB A
Group Company
#H A
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$ 000
T Tt Tt Tt
Denominated in: THEE W
HK$ T 104,766 135,991 498 411
RMB AR 63,662 25,604 - -
Other currencies HoAth £ s 16,952 12,939 624 624

185,380 174,534 1,122 1,035

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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30 CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW STATEMENT 30 #£&8B4HiEE

(@)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash (used (a) o B i Vi ) B (BT ) R
in)/generated from operations: ZH G RN
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THTT
Profit before taxation [ AT Ve 1) 372,187 234,688
Amortisation of leasehold land and ~ FHLEF b J% - Hib {5 FiI 4
land use rights g 341 169
Depreciation of property, W - W5 B idnes
plant and equipment 31,982 25,493
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - RE K
plant and equipment BdiiPd i 1,027 2,124
Interest income FEMA (1,882) (2,438)
Interest expense FIEBA S 3,429 179
Gain on disposal of a property HE—IAYEZ IRt - (10,610)
Deficit on revaluation of A2 2 FAh s 4
other properties 46 269
Share of results of an associate JREAL — R ) SE AR 856 -
Gain on deemed disposal of AR — R A Wl 2 Wi
a subsidiary (26) —
Operating profit before working B A S B A KB IR
capital changes 407,960 249,874
Increase in rental deposits FHAH R (2,709) (2,340)
Increase in inventories LEasei il (496,750) (139,868)
Increase in trade and other receivables, & % K& H AL RENARIA -
deposits and prepayments T4 B FEATHRIE S (27,657) (19,366)
Increase in amount due from JRE S — G 4 ) R T A
an associate (15,029) -
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R FAth A HRIEH 76,315 65,663
Net cash (used in)/generated B () B2 B AT
from operations (57,870) 153,963
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 30

(Continued)

(b)

Deemed disposal of a subsidiary

ST BLArin B ()

(b)  BAEME—-KHE A

2008
HK$°000
T#T
Property, plant and equipment W ~ RS B 2,730
Current assets TR & 39,326
Total assets G 42,056
Total liabilities AR (38,716)
Minority interests DRI (1,636)
Net assets at the date AW B ETE
of disposal 1,704
Less: Amount retained as W R A RIRE
investment in Z HRIA (B 5E20)
an associate (Note 20) (1,730)
Net assets acquired I i (26)
Proceeds from deemed disposal HAAE 5 A5 3H -
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8)  #71E th & — KB A 7l 2 Witz (Fi5ES) (26)
Net cash outflow from deemed disposal of AR — R A 7 2 Bl i
a subsidiary is determined as follows: HF R
Proceeds received from AR B — R A R A5 30
deemed disposal of a subsidiary -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W R E A w2 Bl
in a subsidiary disposed K &5 EY 1,517)
Net cash outflow from deemed AR — KB w2 Bl
disposal of a subsidiary PITRARRE X ) (1,517)



31 COMMITMENTS - GROUP 31 RYE—4EH
(a)  Capital commitments (a) HARRSE
Group
3|
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THTT
Contracted but not provided 5] #MERAE B 2 2 -
for property, plant and NS
equipment 3,964 7,257
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) BBRERSE

At 31st March 2008, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of land and buildings as follows:

HA20084FE3 H31 H » A4E M5t 1
b R i AR PR N T G 2 AR AR
B AR A S AT 2 S ARFR B A 3k
MBI -

Group
H

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’000

T TG

Not later than one year —4EN 111,982 94,071
Later than one year and — AR RBE LA

not later than five years 120,225 75,802

Later than five years R A 1,123 =

233,330 169,873

The actual payments in respect of certain operating leases
are calculated at the higher of the minimum commitments
as noted above and the amounts determined based on a
percentage of the sales of the related outlets.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is controlled by Luk Fook (Control) Limited (‘“Luk
Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which directly owns 47.08% of the Company’s shares. The remaining
shares of the Company are widely held.

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family were discretionary
beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust
was the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Kwai
Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited which was
the beneficial owner of 36.72% of issued shares of Luk Fook Control.
The remaining shares of Luk Fook Control are widely held.

(a) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mr WONG Kwai Sang, Mr WONG Wai
Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop of the Group
for a period of 1 year (2007: 1 year), expiring on 31st
December 2008. During the year ended 31st March 2008,
rental paid/payable to Mr WONG Kwai Sang amounted to
HK$2,040,000 (2007: HK$1,860,000).

(b) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a service contract
(“Service Contract”) with Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
and Topone Investments Limited (“Topone”) for a period of 1
year (2007: 1 year) expiring on 31st March 2008. Pursuant to
the Service Contract, Topone agreed to make available Miss
Yeung’s exclusive services for the promotion of the products
and services of the Group in consideration of an annual fee of
HK$335,000 (2007: HK$403,000).

Both Mr WONG Wai Sheung and Miss YEUNG Po Ling,
Pauline are directors of the Company and have beneficial
interests in the Company.

32

HBEA L2355

AR 2 BEIB AN T B AR (HER) A R
A (TR D) - 8% A S A T 30
BEE R ARSL > BB A7 7 7147.08%
Wt o A2 FIR TR -

WA A R R B KRG
(MMEsE)) 2 2HEZ TN - LB
HHESTAERAFAEIMEBITHRAZ
HaEA A > H sk E ST A RAR
B A S EEE36.72% 8 AT Iy ©
INARPERER T AR B o

(2

(b)

AN F) — 5K W g o ) B AR
S 2 AUHE A AT L
Ehhak o MM T A EAE
FEWMEAE - BI1E (2007
A 1AR) 5 AR 2008412H 31 H
JE o A E20084F3 A 31 H L4
B BAY REAT R A A
il 42 %4 2,040,000%5 T (2007 4F :
1,860,000¥570) °

AR\ T — 52 B I 4 ) BRLAR 2N
IR —BREARAR (H—D
FIVERBS AR (TR EHD) > B
WA (20074F : 14F) > iR20084F
3A31LH EW - RIFRE &4
7% — [A) A /N AL [v) A 4 (o 2 1 1
TR > DA oA 4 1 1 28 s I
MR% > AAE & & 5 335,000 70
(20074 : 403,000%57T) °

AR e R R /N By A
P SR A R A A

J

Bk D>



32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32 f B ALZRH @)

(¢) Key management compensation (c) THEIEHNE
2008 2007
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T T
Directors’ fees HHEME 960 933
Salaries, allowances and e B REYA L
benefits-in-kind 23,257 17,099
Performance and e RBAW IS
discretionary bonuses fEAL 9,661 6,073
Contributions to pension plan  #RAREFIEIfHkK 308 300
Total payable and expensed ~ MEATHRIE J% U A BAT R B B 2
in the financial statements ok 34,186 24,405
Benefit from exercise of AT {5 B B T 75 1 2
share options - 3,286
34,186 27,691
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33 BH)E A ElaE
SUBSIDIARIES
At 31st March 2008, the Company had the following principal 200843 H31H » AN T2 EEMEA
subsidiaries: "W -
Percentage of
Place of Particulars of issued  attributable
incorporation/ share capital/ interest held by
establishment registered capital the Company
R CEARA . AAFEIFRELN  Principal activities
J L VEMFEAGERS BT A E-= 2
2008 2007
Interests held directly:
AR
Luk Fook Investment BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
(B.V.L) Limited SRR RS 27T g et
Interests held indirectly:
IR AR
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Authentication of
HEELR B DA R A A il 2T gemstones
HhE®
Great Cyber Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100 Property holding
TEHER AR AT i 100#7T ERERY/ES
Ice Collection (International) Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Limited il 100% 70 jewellery products
VS (BUHR) A R TRH G 8 2T
Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and
HRE MR CGFis) A RA R AT R R 8,000,000% 7T provision of software
development and services
relating to internet
BOB P SRR R BB K
e = EL B A AR B AR
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Investment holding, and
RE R (W) A RA A i 100% 75 provision of software
development and services
relating to internet
BOB PR - SR Atk BH 3 K%
e S T A R s
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100  Gold bullion trading
ARE AR il 14,000,000% 7T BHEMASK



33 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33 WHEA AlREN 0
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of
Place of Particulars of issued  attributable
incorporation/ share capital/ interest held by
establishment registered capital the Company
kM, CEATBAR . AAFEPFMEN  Principal activities
AR L WEMEATE  HEREA FEEH
2008 2007
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
PR R : (B0
Luk Fook Holdings Company Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management
Limited ik 28T services to group companies
AR EA PR A and wholesale distribution
of gold and jewellery
products
TR AL RS AL A R K
HEBE A B BRE i
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Hong Kong HK$100 100 100  Retailing of gold and
(HK) Company Limited s 1003570 jewellery products
SNERE ST (F) ARRAF PRE i T EEN
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100  Retailing of gold and
(Macao) Company Limited i 1,000,000 F 72 jewellery products in Macau
SNETRE ST R A BRA TP AE Sk e i
7 R
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada CA$ 100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
(Canada) Limited JIEYN 100/ K7t jewellery products in Canada
ANEHRESAT ONER) FRRA RIS RAE F R E Sl
7 BT
Max Forum Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100 100  Property holding
It B B R TR A S 100% 70 LS
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing and wholesale
EAEAEA R i 3,000,0007 G distribution of jewellery

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7484 8 (B F%) A FR A ]
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33 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33 HHE A A s
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of

Place of Particulars of issued  attributable

incorporation/ share capital/ interest held by

establishment registered capital the Company

kY, CHATBAR . AAFE PN Principal activities

J . H WEMHEARGER R T I FRRH

2008 2007
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
W Br A hiEds - (B0
NIEIRE (FY) A BRA PRC HK$20,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale,

2] 20,000,000 70 retailing of gold and jewellery
products and provision of
quality examination services
in the PRC

TR B 2 R R
TS MR A R
R
JE M 7SR A PR | PRC HK$50,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing, wholesale,

2] 50,000,000% 70 retailing of gold and jewellery
products and provision of
quality examination services
in the PRC

TR B 2 R R
G RRRE AT
R
AR B & B PR 22 PRC HK$6,000000 933 933 Manufacturing of
] 6,000,000 7T jewellery products in the PRC
JiA e IR SR B E
N ) 28 i PR T PRC HK$35,000,000 100 100  Property holding in the PRC
i 35,000,000 7T AR A 13
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises in + LSRRI A W B R L 2 B A A
the PRC. EC
Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate principally RIS N o e S RN 5
in Hong Kong. RS ¥EF -
The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the R RBTSA N R JE A T TS R S
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or FAEEESRAERE BB A LR E
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give FEIFEHZ EEHS; - FEHER L - RLH
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, TR A Rl 2 FEE & S BERIER TR -

result in particulars of excessive length.
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Business Structure

LA

MANUFACTURE & WHOLESALE

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited

Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery Manufacturing (Panyu) Company Limited
Maxigood Enterprises Limited

Success Era Investments Limited

Luk Fook Corporate Gift (International) Limited

Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited
R 4 5 A RS )

PRC BUSINESS
PAREREL (RN A R 7
JEEM 7548 AT BR A 7]
A GBI A B
R ) 252 AT BR A ]

RETAIL

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) Co., Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Macao) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited
Ice Collection (International) Limited

FINANCE

Luk Fook Finance Limited

AUTHENTICATION

China Gems Laboratory Limited
China Gems Testing Centre (Macau) Limited

PORTAL BUSINESS
Jewellworld.com Limited

R WS AR (RN A FRA T

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited  7~#84E il (B0 %) A BRA 7

POE Kb 3

A AT PR 7
AH YA IR A
AR (e ) AR
BRI AT IR )
NS B AT A

AHA A () AR
A A IR 7

BN RS B AT B2 )

B R S
SHREREL (Y A PR 7]
B B AT R 7
B BN ) 25865 B4 7]
B U 1 B4 A 7

2

NAEKRE ST () ARAF
AR E AT MER) HRAF
ANAREREL AT () A FRA
ANAREREL AT (EE) A FRA
UK () A RN )

i

IR AT AT R A 7]

o

R B E LA PR
TSR B S E 0 (R AR A

INEECEE S
SRELILIR (Fi) A PR 7]
SR MAIRHE (YD AT




Distribution of Luk Fook Licensee Shops
in the PRC
i I N o RN 23 Al
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Distribution of the Group’s Retail Chain
A58 B 2 A5 5 4 i

LUK FOOK JEWELLERY %% &%
HONG KONG ik

1

10

11

12

13

14

15

T Uk S BT 2 R HE47955 1 T Cff

Shop C, G/F, 479 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay, HK.

Frvis SR SRS JE ST 50555 2 T B-CHi

Shop B-C, G/F, Radio City, 505 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay,
HK.

i Vs S BV T JE R 46747 3 5 A M e 2K B
A-Bif

Shops A & B, G/F., Kin Tak Fung Commercial Building,
Nos.467-473 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, HK.

B B ST 7T 1 1 22 M 3298 35 A W IR 5 1 T 32 A8
Shop 32A, G/F, JP Plaza, 22 & 32 Paterson Street,
Causeway Bay, HK.

Frus A M e L8 1 55 T 14-1755 40
Shop No. 14-17, G/F, 281 King’s Rd., North Point, HK.

A L A 55 S 400-404 55 BE DL T
G/F, Ming Yuen Ctr., 400-404 King’s Rd., North Point, HK.

i P ER R f KA PSS T
G/F, No.55 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

FUBEEE KA BURHT B E 5355 T A-CHli

Shop A-C, G/F, 53 Fung Tak Rd., Fung Wong New Village,
Wong Tai Sin, KLN.

JURERZ0E 221 B- B9 18 1 25K # T G2l

Shop G2, G/F, Hanford House, 221 B-E Nathan Rd., KLN.

JURE B BOE3 1595 i
G/F, 315 Nathan Rd, Jordan, KLN.

JUREE W AT 77-79%
G/F, 77-79 Mut Wah St., Kwun Tong, KLN.

JUBERE A1 T 30E 687-689 58 T
G/F, 687-689 Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

JURERE A S EEE 603, 603 ASEHTELA & 3 T G1-G25
Shop G1-G2, G/F, Sun Hing Bldg., 603, 603A Nathan Rd.,
Mongkok, KLN.

JUBERE £ 5 3808 650-6525% & b 2K 4t T B
Shop B, G/F, Rex House, 650-652 Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

JURERE fA S 0H S80G-KIM U h o3t R G1-G2 K G134
Shop G1-G2 and G13, G/F, Nathan Centre 580G-K Nathan Rd.,
Mongkok, KLN.

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 744 B (5 [%) A BR 2 #]

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

FUBERE £ 5 80E 612-6 1 854 2 £ K & b T SB 4
Shop 5B, G/F, Good Hope Building, 612-618 Nathan Road,
Mongkok, KLN.

JURERE £ S 0E707-713 9E R = B FR R B 4 A1 S A2 98 &
Shops Al & A2, G/F, Silvercorp International Tower, 707-713
Nathan Road, Mongkok, KLN.

JUREJURE S A i 20 5 1 4Rl
Shop F4, Phase 1, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, KLN.

JURE AR VD WH 3 B0 74-78 % SCHA K B 1 T B Al
Shop B, G/F., Manson House, 74-78 Nathan Rd., TST., KLN

A EOKREER 3958 b oK B 35248235-23 755 4l
Shop No. 235-237, Level 2, 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Landmark
North, Sheung Shui, N.T.

AP R 12 SRR

Shop 12, KCRC Shatin Station, N.T.
D H RS =40 ASE AR

Shop46A, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin, N.T.

AP E I 18 SR ok i B 35 343 17 %
Shop no 317, L3, New Town Plaza, 18 Sha Tin Centre Street,
Shatin, N.T.

B PR A L SR P AT RS A L U 1141 58 8
Shop No. 1141, L1, Phase 1,Tuen Mun Town Plaza, 1 Tuen Shing
St. Tuen Mun, N.T.

A P T R A 3 DR L I T 5 SR I — 48 BT
Shop No.48, 1/F., Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase II, TMTL235,
Tuen Mun, N.T.

A LA S SR B IR AL TR 0t T 65 il
Shop 6, G/F, Emperor Plaza, 55 Chung On St., Tsuen Wan, N.T.

B P AR YR T
G/F, 98 Chung On St., Tsuen Wan, N.T.

BT AR 155 9T
G/F, 155 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, N.T.

TP R A A I AR T 6 W S 48 BE
Shop 6W548, Hong Kong International Airport, Chek Lap Kok,
N.T.




Distribution of the Group’s Retail Chain (continued)

ARG I 2 F A5 0 23 (A1)
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1

10

11

12

13
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rh B b T S S S SO AR A3 SRR A R —
1st Floor, New World Centre, No.3 Chong Wen Men Wai Street,
Chong Wen District, Beijing China

F g b T ARG I T AT I 138 R R A T L 1119%%
No. L1119, Xin Dong An Market, No.138 Wang Fu Jin Street,
Dong Cheng District, Beijing China

e G T P 36 I P AL R 12055 PG B B —
1st Floor, Xi Dan Market, No.120 North Xi Dan Street,
Xi Cheng District, Beijing China

R g DA [ B 2 S5 e AR RO JE R A R )
AR T B — o < PR 7 A

Gold Jewellery Dep., Beijing Cuiwei Building Respect of Limited,
No.2 Huayuan Road, Haidian, Beijing, the PRC

o B A T S e I K R 93 SR 5 e R 3 A D 2
Bt AR R A

2nd Floor, XinShiJieCaiXuan Bulding, No.A 2nd Floor,

‘WanDa Ground, No.93 Lang Garden, Jian GUo Road,

ChaoYang Area, Beijing, the PRC

o 2 TR T S R D R B 89 5 A A VL SE T
ot

2nd Floor, Lanzhou New World Jiang Mei Department Store,

89 Zhang Ye Road, Chengguan District, Lanzhou City,

Gansu Province, the PRC

o R R B T B B 11 2 A = MEC8909 3%
No.C8909, 3rd Floor, Bai Yun Airport, Hua Du District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, China

o I L SR 17 e T A TR R A 99 AR e S ) R 3%
Yinzuo Building Underground, No.99 Le-yuan Street, Jinan City,
Shandong Province, the PRC

o R TV SR T UL B 220 SR SR A T B R B 1
1st Floor, Ningbo No.2 Building, 220 Zhongshan Road,
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

R BT VT N T 2T 2 B 546 9NN E B — M A
Gold Mall South 1st Floor, Hang Zhou Department Store, No.546
Yan An Street, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

rh g L T I AR B — BE L ORE R — g
1st Floor, Shanghai Pairs Spring Building, 1 Songhu Road,
Yangpu, Shanghai, the PRC

e B b O 3 e 4 B R KA 101 58 RS L
TRE I — )

1/F, Jewellery Section North, Parkson Shopping Centre,

101 Fu Xing Men Nei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing,

the PRC

e[ b T T LR I PG4 LR S 7Y R
Shunyi Xi Dan Market, 1 Fugian West Street, Shunyi District,
Beijing, the PRC

MACAU 3™

1 RMHE 32598 T
No.325 Avenida Almeida Ribeiro, Macau

2 PR TG H 121858 T
Avenida Do Infante D.Henrique No:12-18, Macau

30 WP R T BB G R ) b 2018 55 Al
Shop No.2018, The Grand Canal Shoppes, The Ventetian
Macao-Resort-Hotal, The Cotal Strip, Taipa, Macau

USA
1 185 Canal Street, Store A, New York, NY 10013

2 Westfield Oakridge Mall, 925 Blossom Hill Road, Suite 1205,
San Jose, CA 95123-1294 USA

CANADA mEk

1 ISR E FUA SOR AR 54151 98 AUDT 101098 4
Unit 1010, Aberdeen Centre, 4151 Hazelbridge Way, Richmond,
B.C., V6X 4]7, Canada



J) LUK FOOK HOLDINGS ( INTERNATIONAL ) LIMITED

@me\-igﬁ@(@ %) A B2 d

T JURE BRI 5 41 85 A4 Z A8 S A SRAT .0 25
25th Floor, BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2308 1218 Fax: (852) 2374 1696
Website: www.lukfook.com.hk E-mail: group@lukfook.com.hk
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